
City of Keene Planning Board 

AGENDA - AMENDED 

Monday, July 22, 2024 6:30 PM City Hall, 2nd Floor Council Chambers 

I. Call to Order – Roll Call

II. Minutes of Previous Meeting – June 24, 2024

III. Final Vote on Conditional Approvals

IV. Continued Public Hearing

a. WITHDRAWN - PB-2024-05 – Congregate Living & Social Services Conditional Use
Permit – Live Free Recovery, 973 Marlboro Rd - Applicant Live Free Recovery Services 
LLC, on behalf of owner BTD Properties LLC, proposes to operate a residential drug and 
alcohol treatment facility on the property located at 973 Marlboro Rd (TMP #249-004-
000). The parcel is 1.1 ac and is located in the Rural District. 

V. Public Hearings

a. PB-2024-06 – Subdivision – 435 Chapman Rd - Applicant Cardinal Surveying & Land Planning,
on behalf of owner Cornelius W. & Ruth R. Schenck Irrevocable Trust, proposes to subdivide
the ~48-ac parcel at 435 Chapman Rd (TMP #239-041-000) into three lots approximately 3.57
ac, 3.80 ac, and 40.63 ac in size. The parcel is located in the Rural District.

b. PB-2024-07 – Site Plan – Dinkbee’s Redevelopment, 510 Washington St - Applicant
Fieldstone Land Consultants PLLC, on behalf of owner OM 510 Washington Street LLC,
proposes to demolish the existing Dinkbee’s building on the property at 510 Washington St
(TMP #532-003-000), construct a new ~6,256-sf building in its place, and expand the number
of vehicle fueling stations. Waivers are requested from Sections 20.2.1.b, 20.6.E, 20.7.2.C, and
20.14.3.D of the LDC related to the submittal of a drainage report, parking lot landscaping, light
trespass, and parking. The parcel is 0.74 ac and is located in the Commerce District.

c. PB-2024-08 – Cottage Court Conditional Use Permit – Townhomes, 0 Ellis Ct - Applicant
Sampson Architects LLC, on behalf of owner POMAH LLC, proposes to construct a two-unit
townhome on the parcel at 0 Ellis Ct (TMP #535-012-000). The parcel is 0.18 ac and is located
in the Medium Density District.

VI. Advice and Comment



 
 

a. Planning Board Review and Comment on Proposed Development at 57 Marlboro St. and 
3 Aliber Pl. – In accordance with RSA 674:41, sub-section I.(d), owner Jared Goodell seeks 
Planning Board review and comment regarding his request for City Council authorization 
for the issuance of building permits where the street giving access to the lot upon which 
the buildings are proposed to be placed is a private road.   
 

VII. Master Plan Update 
a. Project Updates 

 
VIII. Training: Site Plan Review Process 

 
IX. Staff Updates 

 
X. New Business 

 
XI. Upcoming Dates of Interest 

 Joint Committee of the Planning Board and PLD – August 12th, 6:30 PM 
 Planning Board Steering Committee – August 13th, 11:00 AM 
 Planning Board Site Visit – August 21st, 8:00 AM – To Be Confirmed 
 Planning Board Meeting – August 26th, 6:30 PM 

2 of 85



City of Keene 1 

New Hampshire 2 

 3 

 4 

PLANNING BOARD 5 

MEETING MINUTES 6 

 7 

Monday, June 24, 2024 6:30 PM Council Chambers, 

            City Hall  8 

Members Present: 

Harold Farrington, Chair 

Roberta Mastrogiovanni, Vice Chair  

Mayor Jay V. Kahn 

Councilor Michael Remy 

Sarah Vezzani 

Armando Rangel  

Kenneth Kost 

Michael Hoefer, Alternate 

Stephon Mehu, Alternate 

 

Members Not Present: 

Tammy Adams, Alternate 

Ryan Clancy 

Randyn Markelon, Alternate 

Staff Present: 

Mari Brunner, Senior Planner 

Megan Fortson, Planning Technician 

 

 9 

 10 

 11 

I)      Call to Order – Roll Call 12 

 13 

Chair Farrington called the meeting to order at 6:30 PM and roll call was taken. Mr. Mehu and Mr. 14 

Hoefer were invited to join the session as voting members 15 

 16 

II)     Minutes of Previous Meetings – May 13, 2024 & May 20, 2024 17 

 18 

A motion was made by Vice Chair Mastrogiovanni to approve the May 13, 2024 meeting minutes. 19 

The motion was seconded by Mayor Kahn and was unanimously approved.  20 

 21 

Chair Farrington offered the following correction to the May 20, 2024 meeting minutes: 22 

Line 262 – there is no indication of a vote for the motion that was made. 23 

 24 

A motion was made by Vice Chair Mastrogiovanni to approve the May 20, 2024 minutes as 25 

amended. The motion was seconded by Mayor Kahn and was unanimously approved.  26 

 27 

 28 

 29 

3 of 85



PB Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 

June 24, 2024 

Page 2 of 7 

 

III) Final Vote on Conditional Approvals 30 

 31 

Chair Farrington stated that as a matter of practice, the Board will now perform a final vote on all 32 

conditionally approved plans after all of the “conditions precedent” have been met. This final vote 33 

will be the final approval and will start the 30-day appeal clock. 34 

 35 

The Chair asked whether there were any applications tonight that were ready for a final vote. 36 

 37 

Senior Planner, Mari Brunner, stated that there were two applications tonight that are ready for a 38 

final vote. The first one is SPR-12-17, Modification #2, which is a site plan for Archway Farm, 39 

located at 183 Arch Street. This application had three conditions precedent to final approval: 40 

getting the owner’s signature on the final plan set; submitting five paper copies and a digital copy 41 

of the final plan set; and the submittal of a security in form and amount acceptable to the 42 

Community Development Director to cover the cost of sediment and erosion control and 43 

landscaping. All of these conditions have been met. 44 

 45 

A motion was made by Vice Chair Mastrogiovanni that the Planning Board issue final site plan 46 

approval for SPR-12-17, Modification #2. The motion was seconded by Mayor Kahn and carried 47 

on a unanimous vote. 48 

 49 

Ms. Brunner stated the second item is SPR-01-13, Modification #3, which is a site plan for the 50 

Cheshire County Shooting Sports Education Foundation located at 19 Ferry Brook Road. This 51 

application also had three conditions precedent to final approval: getting the owner’s signature on 52 

the final plan sets; the submittal of five paper copies and a digital copy of the final plan set; and 53 

the submittal of a security in a form and amount acceptable to the Community Development 54 

Director and City Engineer to cover the cost of sediment and erosion control.  55 

 56 

A motion was made by Vice Chair Mastrogiovanni that the Planning Board issue final site plan 57 

approval for SPR-01-13, Modification #3. The motion was seconded by Mayor Kahn and carried 58 

on a unanimous vote. 59 

 60 

IV) Public Hearing  61 

 62 

a. PB-2024-05 – Congregate Living & Social Services Conditional Use Permit – Live    63 

Free Recovery, 973 Marlboro Rd - Applicant Live Free Recovery Services LLC, on 64 

behalf of owner BTD Properties LLC, proposes to operate a residential drug and 65 

alcohol treatment facility on the property located at 973 Marlboro Rd (TMP #249-66 

004-000). The parcel is 1.1 ac and is located in the Rural District.  67 

 68 

Chair Farrington stated that since the Board agenda packet was sent out, there has been 69 

communication from the applicant requesting to continue this application to the July Planning 70 

Board meeting to address issues that need to be resolved with the Marlboro Zoning Board.  71 

 72 

Chair Farrington opened the public hearing and asked for public comment.  73 

 74 

4 of 85



PB Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 

June 24, 2024 

Page 3 of 7 

 

Mr. Bruce Robbins of 5 Main Street, Marlborough addressed the Board and stated that he is a 75 

direct abutter to this property on the west, south, and east sides. He indicated the Marlboro Zoning 76 

Board denied this application due to the 24 hour commercial nature of this business operating next 77 

to a residential zone. He indicated the playground that exists at this location is to be turned into a 78 

smoking area that is only ten feet from his property and this would prevent him from enjoying the 79 

outdoors. 80 

 81 

With no further public comment, the Chair closed the public comment portion of the meeting.   82 

 83 

A motion was made by Vice Chair Mastrogiovanni that the Planning Board continue PB-2024-05 84 

to the July 22, 2024 Planning Board meeting at 6:30 pm. The motion was seconded by Councilor 85 

Michael Remy and was unanimously approved.  86 

 87 

V) Nomination of City Representative to SWRPC Commissioners 88 

 89 

Ms.  Brunner stated the City received an interest form from Michael Conway, who is interested in 90 

serving on the Board of Southwest Region Planning Commission (SWRPC). The City’s process, 91 

which is laid out in State Statute, is for the Planning Board to formally nominate the individual. 92 

The nomination then goes before City Council for their vote. She noted the City already has two 93 

members on SWRPC’s Commissioners. 94 

 95 

A motion was made by Vice Chair Mastrogiovanni that the Planning Board nominate Michael 96 

Conway to serve as a Commissioner for Southwest Region Planning Commission. The motion was 97 

seconded by Mayor Kahn.  98 

 99 

Mayor Kahn indicated that Todd Horner from the Commission and the nominee were present 100 

tonight, if the Board wishes to hear from them. The Chair invited Mr. Horner to speak. 101 

 102 

Mr. Horner addressed the Board and explained that SWRPC is a nonprofit public agency, a 103 

voluntary association of municipalities, that is authorized under New Hampshire RSA 36. He 104 

stated their mission is essentially to provide member municipalities with technical assistance and 105 

guidance on planning issues related to land use, housing, economic development, transportation, 106 

etc. Mr. Horner stated their relationship with the City is perhaps a little different compared to some 107 

of their smaller member communities that don’t have staff to assist with planning issues, process 108 

applications, or handle zoning questions.  109 

 110 

He felt their relationship with the City has been very productive over the years. He referred to 111 

some of the projects and activities they are working on with the City, including Community 112 

Development Block Grant (CDBG) Administration activities, which support housing 113 

infrastructure, as well as other improvements that are intended to benefit low- and moderate-114 

income people. They are also administering a CDBG grant that is part of the funding for the 115 

Roosevelt School rehabilitation.  116 

 117 

The City has representation on SWRPC’s Transportation Advisory Committee, which among other 118 

activities guides the 10-year planning process for this region related to transportation planning, 119 

which in turn guides investments and transportation infrastructure at the state level. This is how 120 

5 of 85



PB Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 

June 24, 2024 

Page 4 of 7 

 

the region’s priorities are conveyed to New Hampshire DOT and other such entities. He indicated 121 

they are currently leading a feasibility study looking at regional transit and different operating 122 

models for improving public transportation options in Keene and the surrounding areas. 123 

 124 

Chair Farrington asked for the actual geographical boundaries of the southwest region. Mr. Horner 125 

stated they have 33 member municipalities, and their service area includes all of Cheshire County, 126 

Western Hillsborough County and one town in Sullivan County. 127 

 128 

The Mayor asked how many regional planning commissions exist in the state. Mr. Horner stated 129 

there are nine across the state. 130 

 131 

The Mayor noted that with Mr. Conway’s qualification as an environmental engineer and Mr. 132 

Kost’s qualification as a landscape architect, they will bring a lot of expertise to SWRPC that 133 

smaller towns might not see. 134 

 135 

Mr. Michael Conway addressed the Board and reminded them that they may remember him in 136 

connection with the Habitat for Humanity property on Old Walpole Road. He stated that he is still 137 

involved with Habitat for Humanity and will continue to serve them. He stated he has an education 138 

and career background in environmental engineering and felt he can be a good resource for 139 

SWPRC in more than one way. 140 

 141 

The motion made by Vice Chair Mastrogiovanni carried on a unanimous vote. 142 

 143 

VI. Master Plan Update  144 

 145 

a. Project Updates  146 

 147 

Ms. Brunner stated that since the May Planning Board meeting, the City has hosted a scenario 148 

planning workshop (i.e. – a “think tank”) which was held over a two-day period on May 30th and 149 

31st and had about 60 people in attendance. After that planning workshop, one of the outcomes 150 

was the identification of key drivers shaping Keene’s future and the exploration of different 151 

plausible future scenarios that could happen for Keene. At the end of the second day, the 152 

participants were asked to indicate their preferred future for Keene and their least desired future 153 

for Keene, which helped guide the eight visioning sessions that were held last week. The consultant 154 

made a presentation at the end of the visioning sessions to the City Council. 155 

 156 

Ms. Brunner stated the purpose of those visioning sessions was to test and validate the outcomes 157 

of the think tank with a broader audience. Throughout the month of July, there will be visioning 158 

sessions held on an “on demand basis.” Another round of these sessions will be held in August 159 

and will be open to the general public – exact dates have not been determined yet. 160 

 161 

August 6th will be the next Master Plan Steering Committee meeting, which will be a round table 162 

discussion where the Steering Committee will be asked to identify focus areas and the strategic 163 

pillars for the plan.  164 

 165 

6 of 85



PB Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 

June 24, 2024 

Page 5 of 7 

 

Ms.  Brunner that stated all this information is on the Master Plan website (keenemasterplan.com), 166 

which also has the think tank report and community snapshot report along with the economic and 167 

demographic data that was collected. Ms. Brunner noted the survey closed on June 8th and this 168 

data is also available on the website. 169 

 170 

Mr. Kost stated he had attended one of the sessions at the YMCA and asked how well attended the 171 

other sessions were. Ms. Brunner stated the session at the YMCA was a small group consisting of 172 

eight individuals, whereas the session at the Senior Center had about 20 participants, similar to the 173 

number of people who attended the other two sessions as well. The Elm City Rotary Club was the 174 

biggest session with nearly 60 attendees and the Kiwanis Club had about 20 people. 175 

 176 

VII. Staff Updates  177 

 178 

a. Future Planning Board Training Topics  179 

 180 

Ms. Brunner stated that she was advised that there had been a discussion at a recent Planning Board 181 

meeting about conducting trainings to keep the Board current with its regulations. She indicated 182 

that for tonight’s discussion, she has a list of topics she feels might interest the Board and that she 183 

would like to get its feedback. 184 

 185 

The topics are as follows:  186 

 187 

1. Site Plan Review: Reviewing the Board’s authority for site plan review and the purpose of it; 188 

Thresholds in the regulations for major and minor site plan review; What the major site plan 189 

review process looks like in Keene; Items the Board should be considering; An overview of the 190 

site development standards; Off Site improvements; Timeframes to act and the types of 191 

decisions the Board can make and what should be going into that. 192 

2. Subdivision Review: Same format as for site plan, to review the Board’s authority, purpose, 193 

process, role in reviewing the subdivision standards. 194 

3. Driveways: Ms. Brunner explained Planning Board has jurisdiction over commercial 195 

driveways. Single- and two-family driveways are reviewed through the City Engineer’s office. 196 

However, driveway approvals are oftentimes done as part of a site plan approval. There are 197 

distinct driveway standards that need to be met anytime a street access is being modified or 198 

new ones are being created. 199 

4. Conditional Use Permits: Their purpose and the types of conditional use permits the City 200 

reviews. In Keene, there is a process known as concurrent review where the Board reviews 201 

conditional use permits at the same time as any other approvals that are required for a project 202 

(such as site plan review).  203 

5.  Zoning Ordinance: Review relationship of the zoning ordinance to the subdivision regulations 204 

and site plan regulations, as well as the Board’s amendment process in relation to the zoning 205 

ordinance.  206 

6. Earth Excavation Permit: Ms. Brunner stated that the City has had only one of these types of 207 

permits to date, but there is likely to be another coming before the Board in the future. 208 

 209 

This concluded Ms. Brunner’s presentation.  210 

 211 

7 of 85



PB Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 

June 24, 2024 

Page 6 of 7 

 

The Chair asked each Board member to indicate items they would like reviewed.  212 

 213 

Mr. Hoefer stated he would like a better understanding of the approval of larger projects, such as 214 

the Home Depot site in the Monadnock Marketplace Plaza.  215 

 216 

Mr. Kost stated he had listened to Ms. Brunner’s presentation on Thursday where she had talked 217 

about creative or innovative ideas for zoning in Keene and felt it was done very well. Mr. Kost 218 

stated site plan review and conditional use permits (CUPs) were important to him. He stated he 219 

would also like a review of the meeting process for the Planning Board itself. For example, what 220 

are we voting on, acceptance of application completeness, all the different steps that the Board 221 

goes through. 222 

 223 

Councilor Remy stated he would like a review of site plans, conditional use permits, and a clearer 224 

understanding of what the Board is supposed to consider during review.  225 

 226 

Ms. Mastrogiovanni suggested site plan and subdivision review as well as a review of the Site 227 

Development Standards. 228 

 229 

Mayor Kahn asked staff if they consider any of the items on the list to be outdated and asked if 230 

anything would require an update in order to be more useful. Ms. Brunner stated that staff 231 

maintains a running list of potential changes to the Land Development Code, including changes to 232 

the Planning Board’s Regulations, the Zoning Ordinance, etc. She stated that most of the changes 233 

staff have identified are included in Article 25, which outlines the application procedure and 234 

submittal requirements for each type of application. 235 

 236 

Mayor Kahn suggested site plan review and conditional use permits as areas he would like to 237 

review.  238 

 239 

Mr. Rangel suggested site plan review, conditional use permits, and subdivision applications. 240 

 241 

Ms. Vezzani asked for a review of what she should look for during a site visit. 242 

 243 

Mr. Mehu asked for a review of CUP’s. 244 

 245 

Councilor Haas addressed the Board and suggested as part of the training to review the efficiency 246 

of the review process. 247 

 248 

Ms. Brunner addressed the Board again and stated that as of July 1st, Megan Forston, who is 249 

currently the department’s Planning Technician, will be moved to the position of Planner. Evan 250 

Clements will remain as a Planner and will also be taking on the role of Zoning Administrator. 251 

 252 

VIII. New Business  253 

None 254 

 255 

IX. Upcoming Dates of Interest  256 

• Joint Committee of the Planning Board and PLD – July 8th, 6:30 PM  257 

8 of 85



PB Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 

June 24, 2024 

Page 7 of 7 

 

• Planning Board Steering Committee – July 9th, 11:00 AM  258 

• Planning Board Site Visit – July 17th, 8:00 AM – To Be Confirmed  259 

• Planning Board Meeting – July 22nd, 6:30 PM 260 

 261 

3. Adjournment 262 

 263 

There being no further business, Chair Farrington adjourned the meeting at 7:16 PM. 264 

 265 

Respectfully submitted by, 266 

Krishni Pahl, Minute Taker 267 

 268 

Reviewed and edited by, 269 

Megan Fortson, Planner 270 

9 of 85



 

 

3 Washington Street 
Keene, NH 03431 

 

(603) 352-5440 

KeeneNH.gov  

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:   Planning Board    
 
FROM:   Community Development Staff 
 
DATE:   July 12, 2024 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item III - Final Vote on Conditional Approvals  

 

Recommendation:  

To grant final approval for any projects that have met all their “conditions precedent to final 
approval.” 

Background: 

This is a standing agenda item in response to the “George Stergiou v. City of Dover” opinion issued 
by the NH Supreme Court on July 21, 2022. As a matter of practice, the Planning Board issues a 
final vote on all conditionally approved projects after the “conditions precedent to final approval” 
have been met. This final vote will be the final approval and will start the 30-day appeal clock. 

As of the date of this packet, there were no applications ready for final approval. 

If any projects meet their conditions precedent between date of this packet and the meeting, they 
will be identified and discussed during this agenda item.   

All Planning Board actions, including final approvals, are posted on the City of Keene website the 
day after the meeting at KeeneNH.gov/planning-board.  

 

  

10 of 85

https://keenenh.gov/planning-board


From:
To:
Cc:
Subject:
Date:
Attachments:

Tara Kessler
Megan Fortson; Mari Brunner; Evan Clements; Jesse Rounds
Jason Reimers; Ryan Gagne
Re: Request to Continue Live Free Recovery Services CUP Application for 973 Marlboro St to July 
Wednesday, July 10, 2024 11:13:31 AM
image001.png
image002.png
Outlook-vqnksotq.png

Hello Megan,

Live Free Recovery Services has decided to withdraw its CUP application for the site at 973 Marlboro
Rd, as it will not be appealing the decision of the Marlborough ZBA to deny its Special Exception. 
Would you please confirm that you have received this withdrawal request and let me know if you
need any additional material/info.

Thank you for your assistance with the application process.

Kind regards,

Tara

Tara Kessler, Planner Paralegal
Offices in Concord & Keene, New Hampshire and Norwich, Vermont
kessler@nhlandlaw.com
Phone 603.352.1928
Cell: 401-339-2889

 NOTICE OF CONFIDENTIALITY: This message, including attachments, is confidential and may contain information protected by the attorney-client
privilege or work product doctrine. If you are not the addressee, any disclosure, copying, distribution, or use of the contents of this message are
prohibited. If you have received this email in error, please destroy it and notify kessler@nhlandlaw.com immediately.

11 of 85

mailto:kessler@nhlandlaw.com
mailto:mfortson@keenenh.gov
mailto:mbrunner@keenenh.gov
mailto:eclements@keenenh.gov
mailto:jrounds@keenenh.gov
mailto:reimers@nhlandlaw.com
mailto:rgagne@livefreerecoverynh.com
mailto:kessler@nhlandlaw.com
http://nhlandlaw.com/
mailto:kessler@nhlandlaw.com





STAFF REPORT 
 

PB-2024-06 – 3-LOT SUBDIVISION – 435 CHAPMAN ROAD 
 
Request: 

Applicant Cardinal Surveying & Land Planning, on behalf of owner Cornelius W. & Ruth R. Schenck 
Irrevocable Trust, proposes to subdivide the ~48-ac parcel at 435 Chapman Rd (TMP #239-041-
000) into three lots approximately 3.57 ac, 3.80 ac, and 40.63 ac in size. The parcel is located in 
the Rural District. 
 

 

Background:  

The 48-acre subject parcel is located at 435 Chapman Rd (TMP #239-041-000) in southeast 
Keene along the east side of Chapman Rd (Figure 1). The lot is located in the Rural District and is 
surrounded by single-family residential uses and undeveloped parcels on all sides.  The Branch 
River and the Town of Roxbury are located ~0.13 miles away from the easternmost property 
boundary. The parcel is currently developed with a single-family home, garage, and a few other 
outbuildings that are accessed from a gravel driveway off Chapman Rd.  
 
The applicant proposes to subdivide the parcels into three lots that will be approximately 3.57 ac, 
3.80 ac, and 40.63 ac in size. The 40.63-ac lot will serve as the site for the existing single-family 
home and the two ~3-ac lots will be available for development.  
 
Determination of Regional Impact: 

After reviewing the application, staff have made a preliminary evaluation that the proposed 
subdivision does not appear to have the potential for “regional impact” as defined in RSA 36:55. 
The Board will need to make a final determination as to whether the proposal, if approved, could 
have the potential for regional impact. 
 
Completeness: 

The applicant has requested exemptions from submitting a narrative that addresses the Site 
Development Standards outlined in Section 21 of the Land Development Code (LDC), separate 
existing and proposed conditions plans, a drainage report, traffic analysis, and soil analysis. After 

12 of 85



STAFF REPORT 
 

reviewing each request, staff have made the determination that the requested exemptions would 
have no bearing on the merits of the application and recommend that the Board accept the 
application as “complete.” 
 
Departmental Comments: 

There were no departmental comments on this application. 
 
Application Analysis: The following is a review of the Subdivision and Planning Board 
development standards relevant to this application.  

 
20.2.1 - Lots: The proposed subdivision will create three lots that are each greater than 2-ac in 
size, are at least 200’-wide at the building lines, and have greater than 50’ of frontage along 
Chapman Rd as required in the Rural District under Section 3.1.2 of the LDC. This standard 
appears to be met. 
 

 
 
20.2.2 - Character of Land for Subdivision: Wetlands are located towards the rear of the proposed 
3-ac lots (Figure 2). Additionally, the project narrative states there are areas of precautionary and 
prohibitive slopes present at the rear of the 40.63-ac parcel that were not surveyed due to their 
location outside of the proposed subdivision area. Despite these site features, the proposed plans 
show that the two new lots can be safely developed without posing a danger to health or peril 
from fire, flood, poor drainage, excessive slope, or other hazardous conditions. This standard 
appears to be met. 
 
20.2.3 – Scattered or Premature Development: The proposed subdivision would create two new 
lots in an area with existing residential development. This standard does not apply.  

13 of 85



STAFF REPORT 
 

20.2.4 – Preservation of Existing Features: The proposed subdivision plan shows that there are 
stone walls around and within portions of the existing 48-ac parent parcel. Portions of these stone 
walls will be used as the property boundaries for the two new 3-ac lots.  
 
To address potential impacts to wetlands, the applicant has added Note #4 under the “City of 
Keene Site Development Standards” on Sheet 1 of the plan set specifying that all development on 
the parcels must comply with all federal and state wetlands and surface water regulations, the 
Surface Water Protection Ordinance in Section 11 of the LDC, and any other applicable City 
regulations. The 75-foot surface water protection buffer is also shown on the plan.  
 
With respect to steep slopes, Note #1 under the “Site Development Standards” section of Sheet 1 
states that any work done within areas of precautionary and/or prohibitive slopes may require the 
submittal of a Hillside Protection Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for review by the Keene Planning 
Board. This standard appears to be met. 
 
20.2.5 – Monumentation: The project narrative states that rebar has been set at all new lot 
corners. Planning Staff recommend that the Public Works Director or their designee perform an 
inspection of the lot monuments, or that a security be submitted to ensure the monuments will 
be set prior to final approval. This standard appears to be met. 
 
20.2.6 – Special Flood Hazard Areas: The subject parcel does not appear to be located near any 
Special Flood Hazard Areas. This standard is not applicable. 
 
20.2.7 – Fire Protection & Water Supply: Note #7 under the “Site Development Standards” on Sheet 
1 of the plan set states that any future buildings shall have an adequate and approved fire 
protection system installed. This standard appears to be met. 
 
20.2.8 -  Utilities: The proposed subdivision plans show two potential well and septic system 
locations. Note #8 under the “Site Development Standards” on Sheet 1 of the plan set states that 
private sewer and water systems will be required for any future building on the lots. The applicant 
has also submitted test pit data, which is included as an attachment to this staff report. This 
standard appears to be met. 
 
Planning Staff recommend including a condition of approval related to submitting documentation 
that state subdivision approval has been obtained from NHDES, which is required for any 
proposed lots that are less than 5-ac in size per State statute Emv-We 1000. Additionally, it is 
recommended that a note be added to Sheet 1 of the plan set with the approval number.   
 
21.2 – Drainage & Stormwater Management: No development is proposed at this time; however, 
staff recommend a subsequent condition of approval related to the submittal of a stormwater 
management plan prior to the issuance of a building permit for either lot.  
 
21.3 - Sediment & Erosion Control: Note #3 under the “Site Development Standards” on Sheet 1 
states that each project shall be designed to prevent erosion and sedimentation during and 
subsequent to construction. This standard appears to be met. 
 
21.8 - Sewer & Water: City water is available near all proposed lots; however, Note #8 under the 
“Site Development Standards” on Sheet 1 specifies that each of the two 3-ac lots will be serviced 
by a private well and septic system. This standard appears to be met. 

14 of 85



STAFF REPORT 
 

 
21.9- Traffic & Access Management: The proposed subdivision plan shows that the single-family 
residence on the 40.63-ac parcel will be accessed via the existing gravel driveway on Chapman 
Rd. Additionally, Note #5 under the “Site Development Standards” on Sheet 1 also states that a 
Street Access Permit must be obtained from the Public Works Department prior to any 
construction. This standard appears to be met. 
 
21.11 - Surface Waters & Wetlands: As discussed above, Sheet 2 of the plan set shows that there 
are surface waters present at the rear of the two 3-ac parcels and also shows the 75’ surface 
water buffer that must be maintained from the edge of the wetlands. Note #4 under the “Site 
Development Standards” on Sheet 1 of the plan set specifies that any development in these areas 
must comply with local, state, and federal wetlands regulations. Planning Staff recommend two 
conditions of approval related to the submittal of a stormwater management plan and flagging 
of the wetlands prior to the development of either of the new lots. This standard appears to be 
met. 
 
Recommended Motion:  

If the Board is inclined to approve this request, the following motion is recommended:  
 
“Approve PB-2024-06 as shown on the plan set identified as “Title Sheet, Existing and Proposed 
Conditions, 3-lot Subdivision, Map 239-041-000, 435 Chapman Road, Keene, NH 03431” prepared 
by Cardinal Surveying & Land Planning at varying scales on June 14, 2024 and last revised on July 
3, 2024 with the following conditions: 
 
1. Prior to final approval and signature of the plans by the Planning Board Chair, the following 

conditions precedent shall be met: 
a. Owner’s signature appears on both sheets of the plan set. 
b. Submittal of four (4) paper copies, two (2) mylar copies, and a digital copy of the complete 

plan set. 
c. Inspection of lot monuments by the Public Works Director or their designee following their 

installation or the submittal of a security in an amount deemed satisfactory to the Public 
Works Director to ensure that the monuments will be set. 

d. Submittal of a check in the amount of $77.00 made out to the City of Keene to cover the 
cost of recording fees.  

e. Submittal of documentation demonstrating that the application has received state 
subdivision approval from NHDES. A note with the NHDES approval number shall be added 
to Sheet 1 of the plan set. 
 

2. Subsequent to final approval and signature by the Planning Board Chair, the following 
conditions subsequent shall be met: 

a. Prior to the issuance of a building permit for new residential construction, a stormwater 
management plan shall be submitted to the Community Development Department for 
review and approval by the City Engineer. 

b. At the Community Development Director’s discretion, the 75’ wetland buffer shall be 
flagged and inspected by the Community Development Director or their designee prior to 
the development of the new lots.”  

  

15 of 85



16 of 85



17 of 85



 
 
Three Lot Subdivision 
Cornelius W. Schenck and 
Ruth R. Schenck 
435 Chapman Road 
Keene, NH 03431 
 
Project Narrative 
 
TM 239-041-000 is a 48 acre parcel in the rural zone with approximately 575’ of frontage on Chapman 
Road. There is an existing gravel driveway accessing a house and detached garage. The lot is mostly wooded 
with the exception of 3 acres around the house. The land slopes gradually away from the road to the existing 
house site. Steep slopes begin approximately 100’ from the rear of the house and extend to the lot line. 
 
The owners are proposing to subdivide 2 building lots along Chapman Road. Proposed lot 1 is 3.57 Acres, 
lot 2 is 3.80 acres and the remaining lot is 40.63+- acres. The proposed lots will be accessed directly from 
Chapman Road.  
 
Development Standards 

Section 19.2.1 The proposed lots meet all zoning requirements 

Section 19.2.2 The proposed lots are gently sloping, have adequate building areas outside the wetland buffer 

setback and do not pose a risk to health or peril from fire, flood, poor drainage. 

Section 19.2.3 The proposed subdivision is not scattered or premature and makes very good use of the 

property and fits well with the surrounding development. 

Section 19.2.4 The proposed lots are along Chapman Road and preserve the wetland area further back, the 

existing house site and steep slopes further into the main lot. 

Section 19.2.5 Rebar has been set at all new lot corners. 

Section 19.2.6  N/A 

Section 19.2.7 Note 7 under City of Keene Development Standards on sheet 1 of 2 in the plan set. 

Section 19.2.8 Note 8 under City of Keene Development Standards on sheet 1 of 2 in the plan set. 

Section 20: N/A This is a proposed single family home lot which is exempt from these standards. 
 
 
 
 
 

18 of 85



Waivers are being requested from the Site Development Standards as noted in the application.  
 
Article 25.10.5.b.2.i-Contours-A waiver is sought from showing contours on the entire site. Contours are 
shown within the area of the proposed lots only. 
 
Article 25.10.5.b.2.v- Hillside Protections Overlay District – A waiver is sought from showing the 
prohibitive and precautionary slopes at the rear of the lot. These areas were not surveyed. There is no 
proposed new construction near or within those areas.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

19 of 85



20 of 85



21 of 85



22 of 85



23 of 85



24 of 85



STAFF REPORT 
 

PB-2024-07 – Site Plan Review – Dinkbee’s Gas Station Redevelopment – 510 Washington St 
 
Request: 
Applicant Fieldstone Land Consultants PLLC, on behalf of owner OM 510 Washington Street LLC, 
proposes to demolish the existing Dinkbee’s building on the property at 510 Washington St (TMP 
#532-003-000), construct a new ~6,256-sf building in its place, and expand the number of vehicle 
fueling stations. Waivers are requested from Sections 20.2.1.b, 20.6.E, 20.7.2.C, and 20.14.3.D of 
the LDC related to the submittal of a drainage report, parking lot landscaping, light trespass, and 
parking. The parcel is 0.74 ac and is located in the Commerce District. 
 
Background: 
The subject property located at 510 
Washington Street is an existing 
gas station/convenience store and 
laundromat located on the western 
side of Washington Street, between 
June Street to the north and Giffin 
Street to the south. The street 
access for the property is from 
Washington Street and currently 
has three large street access points 
that run along the majority of the 
frontage of the property. The 
property is surrounded by the Low-
Density residential zoning district 
on all sides.  
 
The applicant proposes to 
redevelop the site by demolishing 
the existing building and 
constructing a new 6,256 SF, two-
unit building, adding a third fueling 
station, expanding the fueling 
canopy, adding additional parking 
spaces, and formalizing the parking areas. The laundromat will be removed, and the convenience 
store expanded. The second unit will be retail space; however, a tenant for that space has not yet 
been identified. The property received a Variance to allow for a 20-foot rear setback instead of 
the 50-foot rear setback normally required to make room for the expanded building footprint.  
 
The proposal includes an overall reduction in impervious surface, 26 parking spaces, landscape 
islands, and parking lot trees. A new underground storage tank to accommodate the third 
pumping station is also proposed. The property is not located within a flood hazard area. 
   
The applicant has requested three waivers, including: Section 21.2.1.B “Runoff Volume and 
Velocity” for stormwater and drainage data, Section 21.7.2.C “Light Trespass” for light trespass 
of .2-footcandles where only .1-footcandles is permitted, and Section 21.14.3.D to allow for off-
street parking to be in front of the proposed building. The applicant also requests approval for an 
alternate landscape plan related to the screening of parking from the public right-of-way. 

Fig 1: 510 Washington Street outlined in yellow 

25 of 85



STAFF REPORT 
 

Determination of Regional Impact: 
After reviewing the application, staff have made a preliminary evaluation that the proposed site 
plan does not appear to have the potential for “regional impact” as defined in RSA 36:55. The 
Board will need to make a final determination as to whether the proposal, if approved, could have 
the potential for regional impact. 
 
Completeness: 
The applicant has requested exemptions from submitting a drainage report, historic evaluation, 
screening analysis, architectural and visual appearance analysis, and soil analysis. After 
reviewing each request, staff have made the determination that the requested exemptions would 
have no bearing on the merits of the application and recommend that the Board accept the 
application as “complete.” 
 
Departmental Comments: 
Engineering: A Drainage Report stamped by a Professional Engineer, licensed in the state of NH 
should be provided. Staff are aware that the applicant has requested a waiver from the Planning 
Board for this requirement and will let the Board decide if such a report is necessary. 
 
Application Analysis:  The following is a review of the Planning Board development standards 
relevant to this application. 
 
21.2 Drainage:  The applicant states in their narrative that the proposed redevelopment of the 

property will result in an impervious surface reduction of 6.64% due to the removal of 
pavement in the northeast corner of the lot and the addition of new landscape areas. The 
applicant proposes to ty into an existing 18” corrugated plastic pipe that directs flow from 
the north of the site to the south of the property. The roof drains for the existing building 
and gas canopy are currently tied to this drainage culvert at the manhole. 

 The plan proposes to install a new catch basin to re-route the water around the new 
building and then outlet the flow to the south of the property. The plan also includes a 
stone infiltration trench to be installed parallel to the edge of pavement along the 
northwest side of the site. The applicant notes that the trench will further reduce runoff 
from the paved area when compared to the existing condition. 

 The applicant has submitted a waiver request from Section 21.2.1.B “Runoff Volume and 
Velocity.” This section pertains to the requirement to submit sufficient drainage 
calculation information, in the form of a Drainage Report, to demonstrate compliance with 
the Planning Board’s requirement that no increase in the volume or velocity of runoff onto 
adjacent properties shall result from the development of a site. The Board should use the 
Planning Board waiver criteria listed in Section 26.12.14 of the LDC, listed below, to 
evaluate the waiver request: 

“1. Strict conformity would pose an unnecessary hardship to the applicant and the waiver 
would not be contrary to the spirit and intent of the regulations; or, 

2. Specific circumstances relative to the site plan, or conditions of the land in such site plan, 
indicate that the waiver will properly carry out the spirit and intent of the regulations. 

26 of 85



STAFF REPORT 
 

3. In granting a waiver the Planning Board may require any mitigation that is reasonable and 
necessary to ensure that the spirit and intent of the standard being waived will be preserved, 
and to ensure that no increase in adverse impacts associated with granting the waiver will 
occur.” 

21.3 Sediment & Erosion Control: The applicant proposes to install silt fencing along the 
western and southern portions of the property during demolition and construction. The 
catch basins will be equipped with temporary silt sock and permanent oil/debris hoods. 
The lot will be stabilized with loam and grass seed, mulch or new pavement once 
construction is completed. It appears that this standard has been met. 

21.4 Snow Storage & Removal: Snow storage is proposed along the west side of the property 
on the grass area adjacent to parking lot. It appears that this standard has been met. 

21.5 Landscaping: The applicant states in their narrative that the project proposes to remove 
pavement in various locations on the site to improve green/ open space between the 
building and street as well as adjacent properties. The proposal includes an expansion of 
landscaping along Washington Street and within the parking areas. The parking lot 
standards require that the site have three trees, which have been proposed along 
Washington Street.  Proposed landscaping includes oak, maple, and hawthorn trees, 
evergreen shrubs, rhododendron, and other ornamental shrubs. A condition of approval 
regarding a landscape security is suggested in the motion language below. It appears that 
this standard has been met. 

21.6 Screening: The applicant states in their narrative that the current condition of the site 
includes two unscreened dumpsters. The dumpster located on the southern corner of the 
site will be removed and a new dumpster pad/enclosure is proposed to be located on the 
northwestern side of the parking area and fueling stations. The enclosure will be a six-
foot-tall solid fence with arborvitae evergreens planted around the enclosure. The site 
contains existing vegetation that screens the site from the west and south. A stockade 
fence will be installed to screen the property to the south from the proposed parking area. 
The applicant notes that HVAC equipment has not been designed for the new building, but 
any rooftop mechanicals will be screened according to applicable City regulations. 

 The applicant is requesting an alternate landscape screening plan for the parking area as 
allowed by section 9.4.4.A.5, which states, “The Planning Board may approve an 
alternative design for screening of parking lots from public rights-of-way as part of a site 
plan review, if they determine the proposed design generally meets the intent of this 
Article.” The applicant states in their request that the existing conditions of the site do not 
meet the requirements and the proposed landscaping screen plan improves the overall 
condition of the site. The applicant believes that the intent of the regulation is served. The 
Board will need to determine if the standard has been met. 

21.7 Lighting: The applicant states in their narrative that site lighting will be provided by 
building-mounted, pole-mounted, and canopy-mounted light fixtures. The proposal 
includes seven wall mounted fixtures, two pole mounted fixtures, and 6 canopy mounted 
fixtures. All proposed fixtures have a CRI of 80 and a color temperature of 3000k. The 
fixtures are full cutoff LEDs.  

27 of 85



STAFF REPORT 
 

The parking areas have an average illumination of 3-footcandles and a uniformity ratio of 
4:1. The canopy lighting shall not exceed 5.5-footcandles as required when adjacent to a 
residential zoning district. The proposed canopy illumination is 5.3-footcandles. 

 The applicant has submitted a waiver request from section 21.7.2.C “Light Trespass” for 
light trespass of .2-footcandles where only .1-footcandles is permitted at the property line 
of an adjacent property. The applicant states in their waiver request that there is an 
existing City-owned streetlight near the corner of the property. In addition, the abutting 
property has a light source that also illuminates this area. The Board should evaluate the 
waiver request using the criteria listed above under “21.2 Drainage.” 

21.8 Sewer & Water: The site is currently serviced with municipal water and sewer. Existing 
service connections will be utilized for the redevelopment. It appears that this standard 
has been met. 

21.9 Traffic & Access Management: The applicant states in their narrative that the proposal 
will improve internal circulation for both vehicles and pedestrians by formalizing the 
parking areas and reducing the existing curb cuts along Washington Street. The plan also 
formalizes an existing access easement to the property located to the west of the subject 
parcel and identified as TMP 531-045. The applicant anticipates that the addition of a new 
pump station will have a negligible impact on traffic demand. A traffic report is anticipated 
prior to the Planning Board meeting but has not been submitted to staff at this time. The 
Board will need to determine if this standard has been met. 

 The applicant has submitted a waiver request from Section 21.14.3.D to allow for two 
parking spaces in front of the proposed building. The Board should evaluate the waiver 
request using the criteria listed above in section 21.2 of this report. 

21.10 Filling & Excavation: The applicant states in their narrative that filling and excavation will 
be limited to the removal of the existing building and hardscape as well as digging the 
new building foundation and new underground storage tank. Earthwork will be minimal 
due to the developed nature of the site. The site is located near NH Route 9 and 
Washington Street provides direct access to the highway. It appears that this standard 
has been met. 

21.11 Surface Waters & Wetlands: There are no surface waters located on the property. This 
standard is not applicable. 

21.12 Hazardous & Toxic Materials: The applicant states in their narrative that the existing and 
proposed use of the property is for a refueling station. Hazardous and toxic materials will 
be stored on site and include gasoline and diesel fuel. All required federal and state 
permits will be submitted to the Community Development Department for review. Copies 
of the underground storage tank permit, issued by NHDES, will be sent to the department 
as well. It appears that this standard will be met. 

21.13  Noise: The applicant states in their narrative that there is no anticipated increase in noise 
levels with the proposed redevelopment as the use of the property will remain the same. 
It appears that this standard has been met. 

28 of 85



STAFF REPORT 
 

21.14 Architecture & Visual Appearance: The submitted elevations depict a 27’ tall single-story 
building with muted earth tone colors. The elevation does not include a material list; 
however, the façade materials appear to be clapboard siding, decorative stone cladding, 
and wooden accents. Windows are proposed along the building front and the left elevation 
that will face Washington Street. In determining if the proposed architectural designs 
meet the standard, the Board should consider the following: 

 
 Section 21.14.2. Visual Interest:  
 

C – “Architectural features shall not serve primarily as an advertisement, commercial 
display, or identifying characteristics corresponding to corporate identity.” 
 
D – “Architectural features shall conform to accepted architectural principles of design 
and construction.” 
 
G – “Exterior materials, textures, and colors shall minimize visual aggressiveness and 
shall harmonize with the City’s distinctive architectural identity and unique character. 
Surfaces with glossy finishes, reflective glass or dark tinted exteriors, or untreated 
aluminum, stainless steel, or metal exterior finishes shall be discouraged.” 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Fig 2: Primary building façade, facing north 

Fig 3: Side façade facing Washington Street to the east 

29 of 85



STAFF REPORT 
 

Recommended Motion:  
If the Board is inclined to approve this request, the following motions are recommended:  

“Grant a waiver from Section 21.2.1.B “Runoff Volume and Velocity” of the Land Development 
Code for the requirement to submit stormwater and drainage data in the form of a Drainage 
Report stamped by a Professional Engineer licensed in the state of New Hampshire.” 

“Grant a waiver from Section 21.7.2.C “Light Trespass” of the Land Development Code to allow 
light trespass of .2-footcandles on an adjacent property where only .1-footcandles is 
permitted.” 

“Grant a waiver from Section 21.14.3.D “Site Design and Relationship to Surrounding 
Community” of the Land Development Code to allow for required off street parking to be located 
in front of the building where parking is normally required to be located on the sides and rear of 
buildings.” 

“Approve PB-2024-07 as shown on the plan identified as “510 Washington Street Gas Station 
Redevelopment” prepared by Fieldstone Land Consultants at a scale of 1 in. = 20 ft. dated June 
14, 2024 and last revised July 8, 2024, and the architectural elevations prepared by Metropol 
Design at a scale of 1/4 in. = 1 ft. dated July 8, 2024 with the following conditions: 

1. Prior to final approval and signature by the Planning Board Chair, the following 
conditions precedent shall be met: 

A. The owner’s signature shall appear on the plan. 

B. Submittal of security for landscaping, sedimentation and erosion control and 
“as built” plans in a form and amount acceptable to the City Engineer. 

C. A revised elevation set with the proposed façade materials labeled. 

D. Submittal of five full-size paper copies and one digital copy of the final plan. 

2. Subsequent to final approval and signature by the Planning Board Chair, the 
following conditions shall be met: 

A. Prior to the commencement of site work, the Community Development 
Department shall be notified when all erosion control measures are installed 
and the Community Development Director, or their designee, shall inspect the 
erosion control measures to ensure compliance with this site plan and all City 
of Keene regulations.”  

 

30 of 85



31 of 85



32 of 85



33 of 85



34 of 85



35 of 85



36 of 85



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
July 8, 2024 
 
City of Keene Planning Board 
Attn: Evan Clements 
City Hall - 4th Floor 
3 Washington Street-  
Keene, NH 0343 
 
RE:   PB-2024-07, TMP #532-003-000 
 Dinkbee’s Convenience Store Redevelopment  

Waiver Request 
 

Dear Planning Board, 
 
Fieldstone Land Consultants, on behalf of OM 510 Washington Street, LLC, is submitting this 
waiver request for Planning Board approval.  The proposed project consists of expanding the 
existing gas station, convenience store, and retail space. The proposal consists of razing the 
existing building, constructing a new 6,256 SF building with two separate units, increasing 
parking spaces, additional gas pumps, expanding the fuel pump canopy area, and formalizing 
parking areas. Based on the Community Development review letter, dated June 28, 2024, we are 
hereby seeking waivers for following standards in the Land Development Code (LDC).  
 
Waiver 1: 
§ 20.2.1.B Runoff Volume and Velocity: States that the applicant shall provide sufficient 
data in the form of a drainage report prepared by a NH licensed engineer to 
demonstrate compliance with requirement. The redevelopment plans will reduce overall 
impervious surfaces on the subject property. Stormwater will be directed to existing stormwater 
management areas, following existing, established flow pathways to existing discharge points. 
An infiltration trench will be constructed along the rear of the property to mitigate any potential 
water trespass off of the site. We are requesting a waiver for this requirement, as allowed per 
Section Article 25.12.14.A. 
 

1. Strict conformity would pose an unnecessary hardship to the applicant and the 
waiver would not be contrary to the spirit and intent of the regulations: If the 
applicant is required to adhere to this section of the regulations, it will impose an 
unnecessary hardship. The engineering work required to produce this information will 
add significant time and cost to the project. The spirit and intent of the ordinance will be 
met by approving the waiver for this section. The purpose of the regulation is to 

37 of 85



 
 
Dinkbee’s Convenince Store Redevelopment 
Lot 532-003 – Waiver Request  Page 2 of 4 
  

demonstrate no increase in peak flow rates off of the property during storm events as a 
result of proposed improvements. The proposed improvements reduce impervious areas 
and add an additional LID. The proposed improvements will use existing discharge 
points. As such a stormwater and drainage report is unnecessary for the proposed 
improvements.   
 

2. Specific circumstances relative to the site plan, or conditions of the land in such 
site plan, indicate that the waiver will properly carry out the spirit and intent of the 
regulations. The site plan demonstrates both the reduction in impervious area and the 
existing stormwater management conditions on the subject property. The proposed 
conditions demonstrate grading of the site that will continue to direct stormwater to 
existing discharge points after redevelopment. 
 

3. In granting a waiver, the Planning Board may require any mitigation that is 
reasonable and necessary to ensure that the spirit and intent of the standard 
being waived will be preserved, and to ensure that no increase in adverse 
impacts associated with granting the waiver will occur. There will be no increase in 
adverse impacts by granting this waiver.  

  
Waiver 2: 
§ 20.6.E. Parking Lots: States that parking lots shall be designed and screened in 
accordance with Article 9 of this LDC. Article 9.4.4.A. addresses parking lot screening 
and perimeter landscape area. The existing conditions of the subject property do not comply 
with these regulations along the northern and southern boundaries of this property. The proposed 
redevelopment of the subject property will follow existing, historic buffers and edge of pavement 
along the northeastern boundary of the property with some removal of impervious surface 
beyond the existing curb. The existing conditions do not comply with this regulation, the 
proposed improvements, while not meeting the regulation will improve over existing conditions. 
The existing southern access driveway on the property trespasses across the southern property 
line. The proposed redevelopment will reduce and formalize this access point. A stockade fence 
is proposed for screening between the proposed parking area and the property to the south. We 
are requesting a waiver for this requirement, as allowed per Section Article 25.12.14.A. 
 

1. Strict conformity would pose an unnecessary hardship to the applicant and the 
waiver would not be contrary to the spirit and intent of the regulations: If the 
applicant is required to adhere to this section of the regulations, it will impose an 
unnecessary hardship. The subject property has two established business operations 
onsite and no existing landscape buffer in the areas in question. Providing an eight-foot 
wide landscape buffer along these sections of parking will limit the expansion of this 
business property by limiting the number of parking spaces that can fit on the property. 
The proposed improvements will allow for the expansion of business on the property. 
Complying with this regulation would prevent the property owner and applicant from 
investing in this redevelopment and expansion. The purpose of this regulation is to screen 

38 of 85



 
 
Dinkbee’s Convenince Store Redevelopment 
Lot 532-003 – Waiver Request  Page 3 of 4 
  

adjacent properties from new parking areas, the access and parking areas on this property 
have been long established with no screening. Improvements to the northern parking area 
will mimic existing conditions and the addition of a stockade fence to the south will 
improve existing conditions.  
 

2. Specific circumstances relative to the site plan, or conditions of the land in such 
site plan, indicate that the waiver will properly carry out the spirit and intent of the 
regulations. The site plan demonstrates that the waiver will carry out the spirit and intent 
of the regulations. The proposed improvements as shown on the site plan demonstrate 
that the redevelopment of the site will be more in compliance with these regulations than 
existing conditions. 

 
3. In granting a waiver, the Planning Board may require any mitigation that is 

reasonable and necessary to ensure that the spirit and intent of the standard 
being waived will be preserved, and to ensure that no increase in adverse 
impacts associated with granting the waiver will occur. There will be no increase in 
adverse impacts by granting this waiver.  

 
 
Waiver 3: 
§ 20.7.2.C Light Trespass: States that the maximum light level of any light fixture cannot 
exceed 0.1-footcandle measured at the property line and cannot exceed 1-footcandle 
measured at the right-of way line of a street. The redevelopment plans include a pole 
mounted light fixture in the northeastern corner of the subject property. The proposed foot candle 
reading for this light is 0.2-footcandles at the property line. Existing lighting features on the 
adjacent property (TMP 518-001-000) in addition to an existing street light approximately 10 
feet distant to the proposed light already illuminate the area of the property line in excess of 0.1-
footcandles. We are requesting a waiver for this requirement, as allowed per Section Article 
25.12.14.A. 
 

1. Strict conformity would pose an unnecessary hardship to the applicant and the 
waiver would not be contrary to the spirit and intent of the regulations: If the 
applicant is required to adhere to this section of the regulations, it will impose an 
unnecessary hardship. The proposed light is intended to illuminate the parking and 
refueling area. The proposed light is necessary for the safety and security of customers 
and workers on the property. The light trespass will not exceed existing conditions. The 
spirit and intent of the ordinance will be met by approving the waiver for this section. 
The purpose of the regulation is to demonstrate no excessive light trespass on adjacent 
properties. This area is and should be well lit to preserve safe and secure conditions on 
the property and the adjacent commercial property.  As such, we request a waiver to this 
regulation.   
 

2. Specific circumstances relative to the site plan, or conditions of the land in such 
site plan, indicate that the waiver will properly carry out the spirit and intent of the 

39 of 85



 
 
Dinkbee’s Convenince Store Redevelopment 
Lot 532-003 – Waiver Request  Page 4 of 4 
  

regulations. The site plan demonstrates the minimal light incursion at the northeast 
corner of the property. The adjacent property is also developed as a commercial property 
with their own site lighting to provide safety and security on the premises. The spirit and 
intent of the regulation is to prevent unwanted light trespass, it is clear from existing 
conditions that lighting is both wanted and necessary in this location to provide safety 
and security for these businesses, their workers, and their patrons. The proposed lighting 
demonstrates the intent to meet this goal with as little light trespass as possible. 
 

3. In granting a waiver, the Planning Board may require any mitigation that is 
reasonable and necessary to ensure that the spirit and intent of the standard 
being waived will be preserved, and to ensure that no increase in adverse 
impacts associated with granting the waiver will occur. There will be no increase in 
adverse impacts by granting this waiver.  

 
 
 
Thank you for your consideration in granting the waivers outlined above.   
 
Best Regards, 
FIELDSTONE LAND CONSULTANTS, PLLC 
 
 
 
John Noonan 
Project Engineer 

40 of 85



 

3145.00 Patel   Page | 1  
 

 

 

 

 
 
Evan J. Clements         July 8, 2024 
Community Dev. Planner  
City of Keene 
3 Washington St – 4th Floor 
Keene, NH 03431 
 
RE: Response to Staff Comments 
 PB-2024-07 Site Plan Application 
 Dinkbee’s Convenience Store Redevelopment  
 
Mr. Clements: 
 
On behalf of our client, Rakesh Patel of OM 510 Washington Street, LLC, we are hereby submitting revised plans based on 
the staff comment letter, dated June 28, 2024.  The staff comments and our responses are listed below:  
  

1. Please submit color elevations of the proposed building so they can be reviewed for compliance with the 
Planning Board’s Architectural and Visual Appearance standards in section 20.14 of the LDC.: Color elevations 
and architectural plans are included herewith.  
2. Please provide an estimate of the traffic generated by the existing and proposed development using the 
most recent version of the ITE Trip Generation Manual (available at Keene Public Works, 350 Marlboro St.). 
Please be aware that any project involving 100 or more vehicle trips per day shall demonstrate that the project will 
not diminish the capacity or safety of existing city streets, bridges, or intersections.:  The estimated traffic in the ITE 
Trip Generation Manual is based on number of gas pumps with 8 or less, under Land Use Code 945: Convenience 
Store/Gas Station. The estimated number of trips per day would not change substantially, as we have 4 pump 
stations existing and 6 pump stations proposed. We do not foresee any impact on the City Streets based on the 
proposed condition to warrant a traffic report. We will submit trip calculations for the existing and proposed 
scenarios prior to the Planning Board meeting. 
3. Please submit a drainage analysis to demonstrate that there will be no net increase in runoff (volume or 
velocity) from the site. A waiver request letter has been included for this check list item, as there is a reduction in 
impervious area and stormwater will continual to flow to the existing discharge points.  
              a. The proposed drainage pipe (previously blocked off/discontinued but now proposed to be used) extends       
beyond the property line onto adjacent private property. Please describe who will be taking ownership and how this 
infrastructure will be maintained in the future.:  The direction of the blocked off culvert was incorrect and has been 
corrected on the plan. The northern pipe is blocked off, however, the existing 18” HPDE corrugated plastic pipe is 
an active drainage structure that flows from the north to the south of the property. The existing building’s roof drains 
and gas canopy roof drains are tied to this culvert at the existing drain manhole. The drain manhole has an 18” 
HDPE culvert that outlets to the south of the property. The plan is install a catch basin to re-route the water around 
the new building, and still outlet to the south as it currently does. The proposed drainage will also include a stone 
infiltration trench parallel to the edge of the pavement along the northwest side of the site. This infiltration trench 
will further reduce pavement runoff when compared to the existing condition.  
4.  While the proposed dumpster location is the same as the existing location, the area is being redeveloped 
along with the rest of the site. The dumpster area will need to comply with section 20.6.2.A, “Service Areas” of the 
LDC of the Planning Board’s Screening standards, which states “Waste storage containers (e.g. dumpsters or bulk 
storage containers) shall be fully screened by a solid enclosure of wood, masonry, vinyl or other material deemed 
acceptable by the Planning Board.” Please either revise the plan to include a dumpster enclosure area that meets 
this standard or submit a waiver request.: A dumpster enclosure fence has been added to the plans, in addition to the 
concrete pad.  

41 of 85



 

3145.00 Patel  Page | 2  
 

5.  A second, smaller dumpster is shown in the southeast corner of the property. The project narrative states 
that this dumpster will be relocated to the adjacent parcel. Since this dumpster is proposed to be moved off site, 
please remove it from the proposed conditions plan.: The dumpster has been removed from the proposed plans, as it 
will be relocated onto the abutter’s property.  
6. Please submit separate cut sheets for all proposed light fixtures. Please note that these cut sheets will need 
to show a color rendering index (CRI) that is greater than 70.: The lights are shown on the plans and cutsheets 
provided herewith. The CRI for the proposed lights is 80, as listed in Design Notes #2 (Sheet LT-1).  
7. The photometric plan shows light trespass of 0.2 footcandles on the southeast corner of the abutting 
property to the north when only 0.1 footcandles are allowed. Please revise the plan to remedy the light trespass or 
submit a waiver request.: There is currently a City owned street light that illuminates this area of the street and 
abutting property. The abutter also has wall mounted lights in this same area, so the added light from the proposed 
site will not impact the abutter. For these reasons, we are submitting a waiver request.  
8. The northern parking area, adjacent to the residential zoning districts to the west and the southern parking 
area, adjacent to the residential zoning district to the south will need to be landscaped as required by section 
9.4.4.A, “Perimeter Landscape Area” of the LDC. Please revise the Landscape Plan to propose landscaping that 
meets the requirements of the above section.: The northern parking has been revised to maintain the existing 
pavement and add additional parking to the west. The existing trees will remain along the northern property line and 
the new spaces. It should be noted that the northern adjacent lot is not residential zoning.  
The southern parking is located in an area that is currently paved. As there is no room to provide a landscaped 
buffer, a 6’H vinyl fence has been provided.  The pavement encroachment into the abutting property to the south has 
been eliminated, and this proposed layout/entrance will be a great improvement to the aesthetics to this area. We 
have requested a waiver for perimeter landscaping in this area and are asking the Planning Board to approve an 
alternative landscaping plan.   
9. Please be aware that a copy of the crossing easement language will need to be submitted prior to final 
approval by the Planning Board.:  Understood. The crossing easement language will likely remain the same as the 
existing easement language with an addition of “following centerline of driveway”, as the existing does indicate the 
precise location of the easement.   
10.  Please be aware that the existing water and sewer infrastructure extending to the property’s boundary has 
been replaced by the city recently; however, city engineering staff recommend replacing these services beyond the 
Right-of-Way.:  We obtained tie cards from the City Public Works for the locations shown on the plans. The plans 
already show that the services from the Right-of-Way to the building will be replaced (sheet UT-1).  The utilities 
that service the rear lot will also be maintained.  

 
 
We believe that the above responses and revised plans have addressed the items outlined by City staff. If you have any 
questions or need further clarification, please do not hesitate to contact me at jenoonan@fieldstonelandconsultants.com or 
(603) 672-5456.  
 
Best Regards, 
 

 
John Noonan 
Fieldstone Land Consultants 
  

42 of 85

mailto:jenoonan@fieldstonelandconsultants.com


43 of 85



44 of 85



45 of 85



46 of 85



47 of 85



48 of 85



49 of 85



50 of 85



51 of 85



52 of 85



53 of 85



54 of 85



55 of 85



STAFF REPORT 

PB-2024-08 – COTTAGE COURT CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT – 0 ELLIS COURT 

Request: 

Applicant and owner Pomah LLC proposes to construct a two-family dwelling on the property 
located at 0 Ellis Ct (TMP #535-012-00). The site is 0.18 acres in size and is located in the Medium 
Density District. 

Background: 

The subject parcel is a vacant, 
undeveloped lot with frontage on 
Colony Court. The lot was created 
in 2007 as part of a two-lot 
subdivision, S-13-06. City water is 
available on Colony Court and city 
sewer is available from Ellis Court. 
There is a 20-foot sewer easement 
across the south end of the 
adjacent property to the east and a 
20-foot access easement across
the north end of the same property
to allow for future access from Ellis
Ct. These easements are shown on
the subdivision plan, which is
included as an attachment to this
staff report.

Adjacent uses include a four-unit 
multi-family building to the north, a 
duplex to the east, and single-family homes to the south and west. The parcel is 8,000 square feet 
in size and is in the Medium Density District.  

The applicant proposes to construct a two-family dwelling that will be managed by a Property 
Management Entity. Although this lot does not meet the minimum lot size requirements for two 
dwelling units, a two-family dwelling use is allowed if it is developed in accordance with the 
Cottage Court Overlay district requirements and the proposal receives a conditional use permit 
(CUP) from the Planning Board. This project does not meet the threshold for site plan review.  

Determination of Regional Impact: 

After reviewing the application, staff have made a preliminary evaluation that the proposed duplex 
does not appear to have the potential for “regional impact” as defined in RSA 36:55. The Board 
will need to make a final determination as to whether the proposal, if approved, could have the 
potential for regional impact. 

Completeness: 

The applicant requests exemptions from submitting an existing conditions plan, a lighting plan, a 
landscaping plan, and technical reports that are not relevant to this project (traffic, soil, historic, 

Figure 1. Aerial image of 0 Ellis Ct. (outlined in yellow). 

N 

56 of 85



STAFF REPORT 

and screening analysis). Staff recommend that the Board grant these exemptions and accept the 
application as “complete.”  

Departmental Comments: 

• Engineering:
1. It is recommended that the water service connection be made on Colony Court. The

applicant also needs to be aware that there is no sewer main on Colony Court.
2. The applicant needs to demonstrate that no net change in runoff will result from the

proposed building.
3. The proposed driveway must be appropriately aligned or adequately offset with the

existing driveway on the opposite side of the street to prevent potential turning conflict
per Land Development code: 9.3.2.d.

4. The sewer pipe buried more than 10 feet below the surface shall be ductile iron pipe per
Land Development code: 22.3.12.c.

5. The applicant needs to provide detail drawings for proposed underdrain system and
method of connection to the City drainage system.

Application Analysis:  The following is a review of the Cottage Court Overlay requirements. 

17.5.1 Development Types Allowed 

This section details the development types allowed, dimensional requirements, and the allowed 
density and height. The proposal is to develop a single parcel of land with a property management 
entity, which is an allowed development type. The table below compares the applicable 
requirements of this section to the proposed site design. All requirements appear to be met.  

Required Proposed 

Minimum tract size None 8,000 square feet 
Minimum tract frontage 30 feet 110 feet 
Perimeter setback from 
road 

15 feet (or building line) 21 feet 

Perimeter setback from 
other tract boundaries 

Rear: 15 feet 
Side: 10 feet 

Rear: ~19 feet 
Side: ~21 feet 

Density None Two units per 8,000 sf 
Height 2.5 stories or 35 feet max. 2 stories, 32 feet 

17.5.3 Conditional Use Permit Standards 

A. Dwelling unit size: This standard requires a maximum average size of 1,250 square feet
gross floor area (gfa) and a maximum building footprint of 900 square feet per unit. The
proposed units would each be 1,140 square feet gfa and would have a footprint of 608
square feet per unit. This standard has been met.

B. Parking: This standard requires a minimum of one parking space per unit and a maximum
of one parking space per bedroom. Each unit within the duplex would have two bedrooms.
The applicant proposes four parking spaces, (two surface and two garage). This standard
has been met.

57 of 85



STAFF REPORT 

C. Building Separation: Only one building is proposed on the lot. This standard does not
apply. 

D. Driveways: The applicant proposes a shared driveway on Colony Court that is 10 feet wide
at the property line. City Engineering staff reviewed the proposed grading plan and
determined that the proposed grading is acceptable; however, they note that the driveway
must be either aligned with, or offset from, the existing driveway on the opposite side of
the street to prevent potential turning conflicts. Staff recommend that a note be added to
the plan which states that any modification to the driveway and street access location
shall be reviewed and approved by the City Engineer.

E. Internal Roads: No internal roads are proposed; this standard does not apply.

F. Screening: This standard states that either a six-foot tall fence or a landscaped buffer is
required for screening if the proposed building type (not density) is more intense than the
adjacent building type. The proposed building type is a two-family dwelling unit, which is
more intense than the adjacent single-family dwellings to the south and west. The
applicant proposes to maintain existing vegetation on the site as a landscape buffer and
provided photos to show the condition of the existing vegetation, which are included as
an attachment to this staff report. The board will need to determine if the proposed
screening is sufficient.

17.5.4 Architectural Guidelines 

This section includes guidance to promote developments that are respectful of the context of the 
surrounding neighborhood. The guidelines are included below, and the architectural elevations 
are included as an attachment to this staff report.  

The applicant proposes a two-unit townhouse with vinyl siding and an asphalt shingle roof. The 
architectural design appears to include simple, clear massing with vertical/repetitive fenestration 
and contextual materials. The surface parking spaces are proposed to be screened by the existing 
vegetated buffer, which the applicant proposes to maintain. The board will need to determine 
whether this standard has been met.  

EASIER TO APPROVE MORE DIFFICULT TO APPROVE 
Narrow to the Frontage  Wider to the Frontage  
Parking Screened from Frontage Parking Visible from Frontage Building 
Base Differentiated Building Monolithic 
Taller Ceiling Heights Shorter Ceiling Heights  
Natural / Integral Materials Composite and Cladding  
Structural Expression Surface Expression 
Thicker Wall Depth Thinner Wall Depth 
Simple, Clear Massing Complex Massing 
Vertical Fenestration Horizontal Fenestration 
Repetitive Fenestration Mixed Fenestration 
Contextual Materials Unrelated Materials 
Landscaping Unifies Landscaping is unorganized. 

58 of 85



STAFF REPORT 

Recommended Motion:  

If the Board is inclined to approve this request, the following motion is recommended: 

Approve PB-2024-08 as shown on the site plan identified as “Site Grading Plan, POMAH, 
LLC” prepared by Fieldstone Land Consultants at a scale of 1 inch = 10 feet and dated 
June 21, 2024,  and on the architectural plans identified as “Proposed Townhouse, 0 Ellis 
Court, Keene, NH 03431” prepared by Sampson Architects at varying scales and dated 
May 21, 2024, with the following conditions: 

1. Prior to final approval and signature of the plans by the Planning Board Chair, the
following conditions shall be met:

a. Engineer’s stamp appears on the site grading plan.

b. Owner’s signature appears on the site plan and architectural plans.

c. Submittal of five (5) paper copies and one digital copy of the site plan and
architectural plans.

2. Subsequent to final approval and signature by the Planning Board Chair, the
following conditions shall be met:

a. City Engineer review and approval of sediment and erosion control and
stormwater management designs prior to the issuance of a building permit.

b. Any future modification to the street access shall be reviewed and approved
by the City Engineer.

59 of 85



STAFF REPORT 

Landscaping Photos Submitted by the Applicant 

60 of 85



STAFF REPORT 

61 of 85



□ 

0 

• 

(19-9-1) 

123/456 

CCRD 

-0-

'ff 

lcw1d 
STONE MONUMENT (FOUND) 
IRON PIN / PIPE (FOUND) 
s;e· REBAR WrTH CAP (TO BE SET) 

BENCHMARK 

CHAIN LINK FENCE 

TAX MAP. BLOCK & LOT #s 

DEED BOOK AND PAGE 

CHESHIRE COUNlY REGISTRY OF DEEDS 

HYDRANT 

WATER VALVE/SHUTOFF 

UTILITY POLE W/ OVERHEAD WIRES, GUY 
ANCHOR & POLE NUMBERS 

I 

I 

I 

N 

KIMBJ:L����1NNOU 
13 FOX RUN ROAD 
NELSON, NH 03457 

2170/265 
ZONE: LOW DENSITY 

#12 

"-- I 

N1�c5v'
0

t'rok 
47 WASHINGTON AVENUE 

KEENE, NH 03431 
1490/99 

ZONE: MEDIUM DENSITY 

I 
1/ 

I 

I 

I 

36 EWS COURT 
KEENE. NH 03431 

2205/318 
ZONE: MEDIUM DENSITY 

I 

I 
I 

"'-- I 
✓ 

I 
I 

I 

I 

I 

/ 1• PIPE 
BENT FLAT 

(01!Hl3--006] 
SARAH J. COBB 

29 EUJS COURT 
KEENE. NH 03431 

1883/632 
ZONE: MEDIUM DENSITY 

[015--009] 
ANDREW W. MACKEY 
& HAILEY H. 'M-ilTE 

P.O. BOX 272 
WESTMORELAND, NH 03<467 

2330/233 
ZONE: MEDIUM DENSITY 

I 

I 

I 

I 

19 EU.JS COURT 
KEENE, NH O.J.4.31 

1525/486 

Zone: Medium Density 
MAXIMUM BUILDING HEIGHT: 2 STORIES (35 n.) 
MINIMUM LOT AAEk 8,000 SQ.n, 

Survey Notes NOT TO SCALE 

1. lHE BEARtNGS SHOMII ON THIS Pl.AN ARE BASED ON A MAGNETIC OBSERVATION TAKEN AT lHE TIME OF SURVEY AND SERVE ONLY TO 
DEFlNE ANGULAR RELATIONSHIPS. 

2. TI-ilS PLAN IS SUBJECT TO ANY STATEMENT Of FACTS THAT AN UP TO DATE Till.£ REPORT MAY REVEAL 

3. EWS COURT WAS ORIGINAU. Y LAID OUT IN 1879, 28' WIDE PER HIGHWAY RECORDS VOL 2 PAGE 95. IT WAS THEN EXlENDED, 30' WIDE, lN 
1886 PER VOL 2 PAGE 168. TI-fE CEN'TER OF THE MONUMENTED RIGHT Of WAY WAS HELD TO RECREATE THE SIDELINES SHOWN HEREON. 

4. COLONY COURT WA.S DEEDED TO lHE CITY (388/132) 35' WIOE IN 1916. PHYSlCAL MONUMENTA110N WAS HELO FOR THE SIDELINE SHOWN 
HEREON. 

5. TOPOGRAPHIC INFORMA110N SHO� HEREON IS BASED ON AN AClUAl. ON-THE-GROUND FlELD SURVEY BY SVE ASSOCIATES. OATUt.4 IS 
NGVO 1929 PER A RECENT ENGINEERING PLAN FOR COLONY COURT PROVIDED BY THE CfTY OF KEENE ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT. 
C()'IITQUR INlERVAL SHOWN IS 2'. 

6. THE SUBJECT PARCEL IS LOCATED IN ZONE X AS SHOWN ON FEMA FLOOO INSURANCE RATE MAP, CHESHIRE COUNTY, NEW HAMPSHIRE 
(All .lJRISOICTIONS), MAP NUMBER 330 05C0259E, EFFECTIVE DAT£ MAY 23, 2006. ZONE X IS DEF'INEO AS AREAS DETERMINED TO BE 
OUTSIDE THE 0.2X ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOOPLAIN. 

7. UNDERGROUND UTIU11ES HAVE BEEN SHO'M-1 FROM SURFACE OBSERVA110NS ANO CITY Of' KEENE OPW RECORD PLANS. All SUBSURFACE 
LOCATIONS MUST BE CONSIDERED APPROXIMATE ONLY AND SHOULD BE VERIFlEO BEFORE ANY AND All CONSTRUCTION. CALL DIGSAFE 
PRIOR TO ANY EXCAVATION. 

8. PROPOSED LOT 2 SHO'MII HEREON TO HAVE A DEEDED 20' WIDE SEWER EASEMENT ACROSS LOT 1 FOR PURPOSES OF INSTAWNG A SE'ER 
LINE FOR A FUlURE STRUCTIJRE. 

9. PROPOSED LOT 2 SHO'MII HEREON TO HAVE A DEEDED 20' ACCESS EASEMENT ACROSS LOT 1 FOR PURPOSES OF A FUTURE DRIVEWAY. 
THIS AREA TO BE FOR lHE MUTUAL USE OF PROPOSED LOT 2 AND LOT 1. 

10. PLANNING BOARD REQUIRES (PER S-13-06) APPROVAL BY THE CITY ENGINEER OF SEDIMENT AND EROSION CONlROL AND STORM WATER 
MANAGEMENT DESIGNS PRIOR TO ISSUANCE OF A BUILDING PERMIT. 

11, PRIOR TO ISSUANCE OF BUILDING PERMITS ON LOT 2, THE APPLICANT SHAU.: A) INSTAU. SEDIMENTATION AND EROSION CONlROL DEVICES 
FOlLO'MNG BEST MANAGEMENT PRAC11CES, SAID DESIGN AND INSTALLA110N TO BE APPROVED BY THE CITY ENGINEER. 
B) SUBMIT A DESIGN FOR HANOUNG STORM WATER RUNOFF TO BE APPROVED BY THE aTY ENGINEER. 

Plan References 
1. •pLAN OF HOUSE LOTS SUR\'£YEO FOR LEWIS EU.JS", BY SAMUEL WADSWORTH, OAlED 1899, RECORDED AT THE 

CHESHIRE COUNTY REGISlRY Of DEEDS IN PLAN BOOK W.\0-13, f2. 

2. •LAND OF HENRY K. WHl"Tr', BY SAMUEL WADSWORTH, DAlro 1895, RECORDED AT THE CHESHIRE COUNTY REGISTRY 
OF DEEDS IN PLAN BOOK WA0-1, 156. 

3. "BOUNDARY SURVEY PREPARED FOR BERNARD J. BEAUMONr, BY SVE ASSOCIATES ,  DAVID A. MANN, DATED 
1-16-1997, RECORDED AT THE CHESHIRE COUN'N REGISlRY Of DEEDS IN PLAN CAB 12, OR 1, ,054. 

4. FIELD NOTE FILES OF SAMUEL WAOSWORTI-l, ON RECORD AT THE CHESHIRE COUNTY REGISTRY OF DEEDS. FIELD 
BOOK 172, PAGE 39 & FIElO BOOK 89, PAGE 8. S-12,-0C,, 

Owner of Record 
[015-02-006-0000) 

DOUGLAS S. McDONALD 
20-22 ELLIS COURT 
KEENE, NH 03431 

2320/261 

TOTAL AREA BEFORE SUBDMSION 
21,420± S.F. OR 0.49± ACRES 

Surveyor' 11 Certification 

Owner Certification 

Received 

MAR 2 3 2007 

CltyofKeeoe 
Pklnniog Depatment 

I CERTIFY 11-lAT I AM niE CURRENT OWNER OF niE lRACTS SHOWN HEREON AN 

E PLANNING BOARD 

CHAIRMAN, 
'--rlf=-l��-----------SECRETARY 

ZONE: MEDIUM DENSITY -MUM LOT AA£A PER DWEWNG UNIT: 5,400 SQ.n. 
MINIMUM LOT WIDlH AT BUILDING LINE: 50 n.
MINIMUM FRONT SE18ACK: 15 n.

11-ilS SURVEY AND PlA T WERE PRODUCED BY ME OR THOSE UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION 
FROM A TOTAL STATION AND DATA COUECTOR lRAVERSE WITH A POSITIONAL TOl...£RANCE 
BETTER THAN OR EQUAL TO lHE AL1.0WABL£ POSITIONAL TOL£RANCE FOR AN URBAN 
SURVEY PER Lon 503.04 OF THE NH CODE OF ADMINISTRATIVE RULES ANO IS BASED ON 
INFORMATION RECORDED AT THE CHESHIRE COUNTY REGISTRY OF DEEDS AS REFERENCED 
HEREON, INFORMATION PROVIDED BY lHE CLIENT AND PHYSICAL E\1DENCE FOUND. 

74 FLOYD STREET 
DORCHESTER. MA 02124 

2324/323 
ZONE: MEDIUM DENSITY 

GRAPHIC SCALE 

i i 
( Ill FEET) 

1inc::h-20 ft. 

MINIMUM REAR SE18ACK: 15 n. 

MINIMUM SIDE SE18ACK: 10 n. 

MAXIMUM ,C Of' LOT OCCUPIED BY STRUCl\JRESa 45 
MAXIMUM ,c Of' LOT COVERED BY IMl'ERMEABI.£: 80 
REQUIRED FRONTAGE: 50 n.

THIS IS A SUBDIVISION SURVEY AND IS SUBSTANTIALLY CORRECT TO niE BEST OF MY 
KN0"'1..EDGE AND BEUEF. ALL DIMENSIONS ARE SUB.ECT TO lHE POSITIONAL TOLERANCE 
PREVIOUSLY STATED. 

DlfflNG CO'VIIUGJ: Olf PROPOSJ:11 IDT 1 AnzR SUBDl'IJSlOlf 

,c Of' LOT OCCUPIED BY SlRUClUR£S: 20 
,c Of' LOT COVERED BY IMPERMEABl£: 39 

Two Lot Subdivision 
Of Land Owned By 

DATE PLAN: 
9/27/06 

DATE SURVEY: 
RIIQUIRID PARKDIG l'OR KULTD'.AIIILY HOUIIING (2 Ullffl!) IDT 1 
4 SPACES REQUIRED 

Douglas s. McDonald 
DRAWN BY: 

located at 
ROOM FOR MORE lHAN 4 CARS EXISlS ON PROPOSED LOT 1 Tax map 015-02-006-0000 CHECKED BY: 

i 
12/13/06 ADDED PLANNING BOARD REQUIREMENTS RLF 

20-22 Ellis Court, Keene, Cheshire County, New Hampshire 
���--T-:-,=-==,.,.,....=:=--:===:::-r-:::-::-l:���Ri=i=='T=====.c====:========:;;:==::'::"ilscAIE: 

l---l-----+��=-=------;
1 SVE Associates 

® 2006 
PROJ. NO. 

1 1/14/06 ADDED ACCESS EASEMENT RLf 

10/18/06 ADDED SEWER EASEMENT & COVERAGE RLF 

9/06 

RlF 

DAE 

K1842 

NO. DATE REVISION BY 

EngineeriJ18 Suneyiog Landscape Architecture PlllIIJlin& CAD F11E NO. 
--+-----------+---1147 Jlarlboro St., Keene. NH 03431 Phone (603) 355-1532 fax (603) 355-2969 K184201 

website: WW"W'.sveassoc.com 

- FILE COPY

Approved Subdivision Plan from 2007

62 of 85



City of Keene, NH 

Cottage Court 
Conditional Use Permit (CUP) Application 

if you have questions about how to complete this form, please call: {603) 352-5440 or email: communitydevelopment@keenenh.gov 

SECTION 1: PROJECT INFORMATION 

PROJECT ADDRESS(ES): 

NUMBER OF NEW DWELLING UNITS PROPOSED: 

{Please note: Proposals that include the creation of 5 or more new 

units will require concurrent Major Site Plan review. See the Major/ 

Minor Site Plan application for additional information.} 

DOES THIS PROJECT INCLUDE A PROPOSAL TO SUBDIVIDE 
ONE OR MORE PARCELS? 
oYES 

(if yes, a Subdivision application will need to be submitted and re

viewed currently with the Cottage Court application. See the Article 

20 of the Land Development Code (LDC/ for additional information.) 

SECTION 2: CONTACT INFORMATION 

PROPERTY OWNER APPLICANT 

NAME/COMPANY: NAME/COMPANY: 

MAILING ADDRESS: MAILING ADDRESS: 

PHONE: PHONE: 

EMAIL: 

SIGNATURE: SIGNATURE: 

PRINTED NAME: flnt// PRINTED NAME: 

AUTHORIZED AGENT 

(if different than OWner/Applicant) 
FOR OFFICE USE ONLY: 

NAME/COMPANY: lrr,o-\-¼j C\. rv\�3::,1.--' T : 

i------=s:..........:C\.--'------1'....;;=-.!.d ��=� \�:..........:-P=---=--l"-_L�� _ _ __ -rol-000 
MAILING ADDRESS: 

t\ �\ 
PHONE: 

SIGNATURE: 

PRINTED NAME: 

- - -

--- --- --- --- ---

PARCEL SIZE:O. 

ZONING DISTRICT: 

�,um 

0Q_, DATE STAMP:

®rE © (E OW [E� 

ill] JUN 1 4 2024 � 

By 

63 of 85



SECTION 3: APPLICATION SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS 

A COMPLETE APPLICATION MUST INCLUDE THE FOLLOWING ITEMS. BOTH PHYSICAL & DIGITAL COPIES OF APPLICATION MATERIALS 

MUST BE SUBMITTED USING THE METHODS BELOW. 

• Digitally: Email (communitydevelopment@keenenh.gov) or a file-sharing platform (such as Dropbox)
• Mail/ Hand Deliver: Community Development (4th Floor), City Hall, 3 Washington St, Keene, NH 03431

The submittal requirements for Cottage Court Conditional Use Permit (CUP) applications are outlined further in Article 17.5.5.B and Article

26.14 of the Land Development Code (LDC). You may request an exemption from providing any of the items below, except the application 
fee, notice list, narrative, and mailing labels. The Community Development Director may grant an exemption, if it is determined that the 
scope of the project does not warrant the submittal. 

Note: Additional information may be required by the respective decision-making authority during the review process. 

GENERAL SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS 

CERTIFIED NOTICE LIST (See Attachment A for more information.) 

2 SETS OF MAILING LABELS (See Attachment A for more information.) (.,,,,/ 

PROJECT NARRATIVE {See Section 2 of Attachment B for more information.) 

FEES: Fill in the information below to calculate the total fee. 

v 

$100 base fee + $62 legal ad fee + ( current USPS certificate of mailing rate x 1_ ca abutters) = (Total Fee) 

NOTE: Please call the Community Development Department for the current certificate of mailing rate. Checks should be made payable to 
the City of Keene. Credit card payments are accepted in-person or by calling 603-352-5440. 

WAIVERS (See Section 3 of Attachment B for additional information.) 

PLAN SETS 

(See Attachment C for additional information.) 

LOCATION MAP OF PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS 

EXISTING CONDITIONS PLAN 

PROPOSED CONDITIONS PLAN 

GRADING PLAN 

LANDSCAPING PLAN 

LIGHTING PLAN 

TRAFFIC ANALYSIS (ONLY REQUIRED FOR PROJECTS PROPOSING 10 OR MORE NEW DWELLING 

UNITS) 

SOIL ANALYSIS 

HISTORIC EVALUATION 

SCREENING ANALYSIS 

ARCHITECTURAL & VISUAL APPEARANCE ANALYSIS 

OTHER REPORTS / ANALYSES

□ WAIVER(S) REQUESTED

□ NO WAIVER(S) REQUESTED

SUBMITTED 
EXEMPTION 

REQUESTED 

POSTED NOTICE REQUIREMENT (See Section 1 of Attachment B for additional information.) 

2 

64 of 85



Planning Board Descriptive Narrative 

0 Ellis Ct 

6.13.24 

Descriptive Narrative 

Existing / Proposed Uses: 

The lot located at O Ellis ct is currently undeveloped. This proposal is to develop the lot as a 

residential use that will be in keeping with the neighborhood. 

Description of Size/ Intensity of Use: 

The lot is approximately .18 acres. The lot is located in the medium density district. Two 

dwelling units are being proposed utilizing the newly adopted Cottage Court overlay standards. 

All setback, lot coverage, frontage requirements are able to be met. 

Description of Proposed Development: 

This application proposes to develop the vacant lot as a multifamily dwelling. Two units are 

being proposed. There will be a garage under with two floors of living space above. Each unit 

will have two bedrooms. 

Traffic Impact: 
The proposed project will have limited impact on existing traffic patterns and will be consistent 

with the residential use of the neighborhood. 

Description of Parking Demand/ Impact: 

All required parking for the new dwelling units will be on site. 

Location of access points: 

Access to both proposed units will be from a single driveway cut. 

Other Descriptive Information: 

This proposal is limited in scope and is consistent with the neighborhood. 

Drainage & Stormwater Management: 

There is minimal change being proposed to the lot. The intent is to maintain current drainage 
patterns. 

By 

Page 1 of 2 

65 of 85



Sedimentation Control: 

Sedimentation control will continue to utilize existing structures. 

Snow Storage and Removal: 

There will be room to store snow on site adjacent to proposed parking areas. 

Landscaping: 

Proposed landscaping will be consistent with the neighborhood. 

Screening: 

There is nothing being proposed that should require screening. Trash receptacles will be 

stored in the garage until being emptied. 

Lighting: 

All exterior lighting will be residential in scale and used to light ingress and egress points. 

Water & Sewer: 

The proposed building will be tied to city water and sewer. 

Traffic & Access Management: 

There will be no need to manage access to the site given its residential use .. 

Filling & Excavation: 

The proposed building is being planned in such a way as to provide a site that is balance when 
considering any cutting or filling of grades. 

Surface Waters & Wetland: 

There are no wetlands on the site. 

Hazardous & Toxic Materials: 

There are no hazardous or toxic materials involved with this proposal. 

Noise: 

Noise impact from the proposed project will be minimal and consistent with adjacent 

residential uses. 

Architectural & Visual Appearance: 

The proposed building is residential in use and will be wood framed and have an exterior 

appearance that is consistent with the neighborhood. 

Page Z of 2 

66 of 85



67 of 85



8'-0"

32
'-0

"

BasementBasement

14'-1 1/2"

6'
-2

 1/
2"

3'-3" 3'-3"

38'-0"

17'-9" 17'-9"

Mechanical
Area

S/CO S/CO

4'-6" 4'-6"

22
'-6

"

9'-4 1/2"8'-0"

Mechanical
Area

CO

9'-4 1/2"

14'-1 1/2"

Provide 20 min. rated door at
entry from garage;
Typical

Provide 5/8" GWBboth sides of wall

Provide 20 min. rated door at
entry from garage;

Typical

Provide 5/8" GWBboth sides of wall

8'
-0

"

8'
-0

"

Provide bollard for protection
of mechanical equipment

Provide bollard for protection
of mechanical equipment

H

Oil
Tank

Oil
Tank

Oil
Tank

Oil
Tank

CO

H

El
ec

t
Pa

ne
l

9'-0"W x 8'-0"H Overhead door 9'-0"W x 8'-0"H Overhead door

38'-0"

18'-0 3/4"18'-0 3/4"

32"

18'-0 3/4"

Bathroom

30"

7'
-0

"

12
'-1

0"

14'-5 1/4"

10
'-3

 1/
2"

36"

36" deep
landing

18'-0 3/4"

8'-1 1/4"

Bathroom

30"

7'
-0

"

12
'-1

0"

14'-5 1/4"

10
'-3

 1/
2"

32"

22'-8"7'-8" 7'-8"

4'-11"5'-1 1/2"17'-11"4'-11" 5'-1 1/2"

7'
-2

 1/
2"

32
'-0

"

36" deep
landing

2'-1" 3'-6"
3'-3"

2'-2" 2'-2"

4'
-0

 1/
2"

4'
-0

 1/
2"

36" 36"

8'-1 1/4"2'-1"3'-6"

3'
-7

"
3'

-0
"

3'
-7

"
3'

-0
"

3'
-7

"
3'

-0
"

3'
-7

"
3'

-0
"

24
'-9

 1/
2" 10'-6 3/4"

32"

32"

38'-0"

18'-0 3/4"

32
'-0

"

10 1/2"

7'-8" 22'-8"

12
'-1

0"

14'-5 1/4" 3'-3"

7'
-10

"

3'-3"

11
'-9

"

14'-5 1/4"

5'
-0

"

14'-5 1/4"

14'-5 1/4"3'-3"

7'-8"

7'-8" 22'-8" 7'-8"

Egress

E
g

re
s
s

Dn30"

30"

30"

12
'-1

0"
11

'-9
"

14'-5 1/4"

14'-5 1/4"

Bathroom

5'
-6

"

10'-0"

Closet

Closet

Closet

Dn 30"

30"

30"

12
'-1

0"
11

'-9
"

14'-5 1/4"

14'-5 1/4"

Bathroom

5'
-6

"

10'-0"

Closet

Closet

Closet

7'
-6

"

7'
-6

"

2'
-1"

Attic access;
22x 30 min.

Attic access;
22x 30 min.

Bedroom

Bedroom

Bedroom

Bedroom

7'
-10

"

2'
-1"

7'-4"2'-8"

30"

30"

30"

30"

30" 30"

Egress

Egress EgressEgress

Provide mechanical
ventilation at bathrooms
Typical

7'
-1"

7'
-1"

17
'-1

0"

38'-0"

18'-0 3/4"

S S

S

S

S/CO S/CO

3'-3"

Provide mechanical
ventilation at bathrooms
Typical

E
g

re
s
s

E
g

re
s
s

E
g

re
s
s

5'
-6

"

1'-
0"

O
.h

.

1'-
0"

O
.h

.

Outline of wall below

Sl
op

e
8:

12

Asphalt roof shingles

Peak

Outline of wall below

Sl
op

e
8:

12

Asphalt roof shingles

Ridge vent

Provide Min. 3' bituminous
membrane flashing at roof edge

Provide Min. 3' bituminous
membrane flashing at roof edge

Revisions:Date:

 DATE 

 SHEET NUMBER 

 SCALE 

 TITLE 

Prepared For

 PROJECT 

Proposed
Townhouse
0 Ellis Court
Keene, NH 03431

Pomah, LLC
PO Box 861
Keene, NH 03431

Owner Review5.20.24
Permitting5.21.24

..

.

.

.

.

.

Engineer:

Timothy P. Sampson

..

2024 WO# 24-022
S A M P S O N    A R C H I T E C T S  C

These drawings are LIMITED SCOPE
and are intended only to describe
general design intent, scale, overall
spatial relationships and material
where indicated.
These drawings shall be considered
preliminary for purposes of design
review, comment, or budget pricing
only, unless expressly released for
other purposes as indicated in the
issue log.
The architect assumes responsibility
for errors in the information
provided, and not for omissions.

Architect:

Sampson Architects
Timothy Sampson
NCARB, LEED AP
11 King Court
Suite 1E
Keene, NH
603 769 7736

Floor Plans
Notes

21 March 2017

A1

as noted

Basement Plan
1/4" = 1'-0"Scale:

GENERAL NOTES:
1. Contractor shall review existing conditions by field visit prior to

submitting bid.
2. Dimensions shown are approximate only. All dimensions shall be

field verified and coordinated with existing conditions.
3. Contact architect / engineer for decisions related to variation from

information shown.
4. The contractor shall certify that all work is9in accord with the 2009

version of the International Residential Code, all other local
or national codes and requirements and good construction
practices.

5. Insulation to be provided to achieve the following values:
Walls:   R-20
Floors:  R-30
 Sloped Ceiling:  R-30
Flat Ceilings  R-38
Windows:  U-.35

6. Contractor to verify R.O. of doors and windows prior to purchase.
7. All electrical anstallation in the the common wall shall be

protected and comply with IRC Section R302.4 and
Chapters 34-43

Roof Plan
1/4" = 1'-0"Scale:

First Floor Plan
1/4" = 1'-0"Scale:

Second Floor Plan
1/4" = 1'-0"Scale:

68 of 85



Finish Floor

Finish Floor

Top Plate

Vinyl siding

Vinyl trim

Vinyl fascia

Vinyl clad
window; Typ.

Ridge vent

Concrete foundation

Asphalt shingles

8'
-0

"
8'

-0
"

Top Plate

Centerline of fire separation

Egress

Stairs w/ handrail
and guardrail

Egress

ane
Lot

29
'-6

"

Vinyl siding

Vinyl trim

Vinyl clad
window; Typ.

Vinyl fascia

Finish Floor

Finish Floor

Top Plate

Asphalt roof shingles

Ridge vent

8'
-0

"
Top Plate

8'
-0

"

Egress

Centerline of fire separation

Solid fiberglass
exterior door

Egress

Top of Slab

8'-0" X 7'-0"
Overhead garage door7'

-10
"

Top of Wall

Flashing

Gra
Bu

29
'-6

"

Finish Floor

Finish Floor

Top Plate

Concrete foundation

Top Plate

32
'-3

 1/
8"

V.
I.F

.

8'
-0

"
8'

-0
"

Vinyl siding

Vinyl trim

Vinyl soffit

Vinyl clad
window; Typ.

12
8

12
8

1'-0"
O.h.

Vinyl trim

Ridge vent

Stairs w/ handrail
and guardrail

Finish Floor

Finish Floor

Top Plate

Concrete foundation

Top Plate

32
'-3

 1/
8"

V.
I.F

.

8'
-0

"
8'

-0
"

Vinyl siding

Vinyl trim

Vinyl soffit

Vinyl clad
window; Typ.

12
8

12
8

1'-0"
O.h.

Stairs w/ handrail
and guardrail

Vinyl trim

Ridge vent

Revisions:Date:

 DATE 

 SHEET NUMBER 

 SCALE 

 TITLE 

Prepared For

 PROJECT 

Proposed
Townhouse
0 Ellis Court
Keene, NH 03431

Pomah, LLC
PO Box 861
Keene, NH 03431

Owner Review5.20.24
Permitting5.21.24

..

.

.

.

.

.

Engineer:

Timothy P. Sampson

..

2024 WO# 24-022
S A M P S O N    A R C H I T E C T S  C

These drawings are LIMITED SCOPE
and are intended only to describe
general design intent, scale, overall
spatial relationships and material
where indicated.
These drawings shall be considered
preliminary for purposes of design
review, comment, or budget pricing
only, unless expressly released for
other purposes as indicated in the
issue log.
The architect assumes responsibility
for errors in the information
provided, and not for omissions.

Architect:

Sampson Architects
Timothy Sampson
NCARB, LEED AP
11 King Court
Suite 1E
Keene, NH
603 769 7736

Elevations

5.21.24

A2

as noted

Elevation
1/4" = 1'-0"Scale:

Elevation
1/4" = 1'-0"Scale:

Elevation
1/4" = 1'-0"Scale:

Elevation
1/4" = 1'-0"Scale:

69 of 85



1" GWB panel

1
2" GWB painted

2x4 sill plate

Sound batt insulation
2x4 wood framing

2x4 PT sill plate

10" concrete wall

2x4 wood framing

2x8 floor framing

metal track

Finish floor
3
4" T&G sheathing

1" GWB panel

1
2" GWB painted

2x4 sill plate

Sound batt insulation
2x4 wood framing

2x4 wood framing

Finish floor
3
4" T&G sheathing

2x4 Top plate
2x10 floor framing

1" GWB panel

1
2" GWB painted
2x4 Top plate

2x10 floor framing

3
4" Fire retardant plywood
to extend min. 4'0"from
GWB panel in each direction

Per-enginerred roof truss

4" Concrete slab
2" Rigid insulation

8" Crushed and compacted gravel

Fire rated separation to extend
to underside of roof deck

Finish Floor

Top Plate

Finish Floor

Vinyl siding

Exterior sheathing

Vinyl soffit and fascia

Flashing
Vinyl trim

R-21 Fiberglass insulation

Typar building wrap

Drip edge

2x6 studs @ 16" O.C.

GWB; Painted
both sides

Ridge vent

Dining room

Closet Closet

Top Plate

GWB;Painted

GWB; Painted
1x Strapping

Vinyl siding

Exterior sheathing
Fiberglass insulation

Typar building wrap

2x6 studs @ 16" O.C.

GWB;Painted

12
8

8'
-0

"

See structural dwgs for

foundation information

Top of Slab

8'
-11

"
8'

-0
 3

/8
"

1'-
1 3

/8
"

8'
-0

 3
/8

"

Closet

12
8

Pre-engineered wood truss
@ 24" o.c.

Min. R-38 Insulation

Roof sheathing

Roofing membrane

Asphalt roofing shingles

Closet

8'
-0

"

Closet

GWB; Painted
both sides

Closet

10 1/4"

7 
13

/16
"

34
" 

to
 3

8"

Fiberglass insulation

6'
-8

" 
M

in
.

10"

7 
5/

8"

34
" 

to
 3

8"

GWB; Painted
1x Strapping

6'
-8

" 
M

in
.

Equal (4'-0" max.)

2'
-10

" 
Ab

ov
e 

le
ad

in
g 

ed
ge

of
 n

os
in

g

1'-0"

2'
-10

" 
A.

F.
F.

See plan
1 Tread

Tread
See plan

S
e
c
ti
o
n

Ri
se

S
e
e

(T
Y

P
.)

1'-0"

6"
(TYP.)

2'
-10

" 
A.

F.
F

(T
Y

P
.)

Equal (4'-0" max.)

(T
Y

P
.)

(TYP.)
6"

Scale:
Detail - Stair Handrail

3/4" = 1'-0"

Type 1 Wood handrail

Metal handrail bracket

Wood tread and riser

3'
-6

"

Wall beyond112"

112"
Min.

Scale:
Detail - Stair Handrail

1-1/2" = 1'-0"

Type 1 wood handrail

Metal handrail bracket

5
8" Type "X" GWB painted

Blocking as required

Typical exterior wall

Floor framing

8" Concrete wall

Scale:
Detail - Foundation Insulation

1-1/2" = 1'-0"

R-30 Fiberglass insulation

Aluminum drip edge

1'-0"+/-

Wood fascia

Pre-engineered roof truss

5
8" Exterior sheathing

Ice and Water Shield;
Apply Min 3' from roof edge

Soffit with venting

Typical exterior wall

Asphalt roof shingles

Gwb; painted

Strapping

Scale:
Detail - Roof Overhang

1-1/2" = 1'-0"

R-38 Batt insulation

Fire rated separation to
extend through to soffit

Scale:
Detail - Stair (top landing)

1-1/2" = 1'-0"

2x12 Stringer

Wood tread and riser

2-2x12 nailer

10" min.

7 
3 4"

 M
ax

3
4" nosing

10" Min.

73
4"

M
ax

.

3
4" nosing

Scale:
Detail - Stair Exterior

1-1/2" = 1'-0"

Riser may be poen;
4" Max opening

Vinyl siding

Exterior sheathing

R-20 Fiberglass insulation
1
2" GWB; Painted

2x6 wood framing

Flashing

(2) 2x 8  Header w/ 2" rigid foam;
Typ.

Vinyl siding

Exterior sheathing

R-20 Fiberglass insulation
1
2" GWB; Painted

2x6 wood framing

PVC Trim

Flashing

Flashing

(2) 2x 8  Header w/ 2" rigid foam;
Typ.

Vinyl soffit

Roof truss
See structural drawings

Roofing underlayment

Asphalt shingles

3
4" plywood sheathing
Fiberglass batt insulation

7'
-10

"

8" concrete wall

Drip edge

Vinyl fascia

8" Crushed and compacted gravel
2" Rigid insulation
4" Concrete slab

R-30 Fiberglass insulation

Slo
pe

Slope

Slope

Slope

Slo
pe

Slope

Slo
pe

Slope

Slope Slope

Slo
pe

Slo
pe

Slo
pe

Slo
pe

10'-0"

5' R. typical

Slo
pe

72
.74

72
.74

110

110

21'-1"

21'-2"

19
'-4

"
21'

-0"

BUILDING SETBACKS

Proposed
Dwelling

BUILDING SETBACKS

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 S

ET
BA

CK
S

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 S

ET
BA

CK
S

LOT 535-013-000-000-000
LOT AREA: 0.183 ACRES ±
LOT AREA: 8,001 SQ.FT. ±

Retaining wall
Final height and 
be field verified

Retaining wall
Final height and location to

be field verified

Exterior Wall Section
1/2" = 1'-0"Scale:

Revisions:Date:

 DATE 

 SHEET NUMBER 

 SCALE 

 TITLE 

Prepared For

 PROJECT 

Proposed
Townhouse
0 Ellis Court
Keene, NH 03431

Pomah, LLC
PO Box 861
Keene, NH 03431

Owner Review5.20.24
Permitting5.21.24

..

.

.

.

.

.

Engineer:

Timothy P. Sampson

..

2024 WO# 24-022
S A M P S O N    A R C H I T E C T S  C

These drawings are LIMITED SCOPE
and are intended only to describe
general design intent, scale, overall
spatial relationships and material
where indicated.
These drawings shall be considered
preliminary for purposes of design
review, comment, or budget pricing
only, unless expressly released for
other purposes as indicated in the
issue log.
The architect assumes responsibility
for errors in the information
provided, and not for omissions.

Architect:

Sampson Architects
Timothy Sampson
NCARB, LEED AP
11 King Court
Suite 1E
Keene, NH
603 769 7736

Sections
Details

21 March 2017

A3

Site Plan

as noted

Building Section
1/4" = 1'-0"Scale:

Unit Separation Wall Section
1/2" = 1'-0"Scale:

Site Plan
3/32" = 1'-0"Scale:

Zoning Data:
Parcel ID: 535-013-000-000-000
Owner: Pomah, LLC
Zoning: Medium Density
Lot Area: 8,001 sf

Max. Building Height: 2 Stories / 35 feet
Min. Lot Area: 8,000 SF
Min. Lot area per Dwelling unit: 5,400 SF
Min lot width at building line: 60 feet
Min. Front Setback: 15 feet
Min. Rear Setback: 15 feet
Min. Side Setback: 10 feet
Max. Percentage of Lot
Occupied by Structures: 45%
Max. Percentage Impermeable
Materials: 60%
Min. Percentage of green space 40%

2 Stories / 34 feet
8,001 SF
.
110 feet
21 feet
19 feet
21 ft

16%

34%
66%

Required Proposed Structure

70 of 85



S1

1

32
'-0

"

38'-0"

S1

2

7"7" 10"

T.O.W. - VIF

B.O.F. - VIF

Door opening;
Typ.

2'-0"

13'-2" 2'-0"

2'-0"

38'-0"

2'-0"

S1

3

13'-2"2'-0" 2'-0"

Strip footing

9'-3" 3'-6" 12'-6" 3'-6" 9'-3"

34'-0"

8'
-6

"
17

'-0
"

S1

6

S1

6

7"
7"

10
"

7" 7"10"

2'-0"

7" 7"10"

17'-9" 17'-9"

S1

5

20
'-0

"
12

'-0
"

S1

4

Footing to slope / step to maintain
minimum depth of 4'-0" below

grade Per 403.1.5

All foundation drop locations
to be verified in field

Footing to slope / step to maintain
minimum depth of 4'-0" below
grade Per 403.1.5

All foundation drop locations
to be verified in field

11
" 

To
 c

en
te

r
of

 re
ba

r

1"

8"

8"

3"
Co

ve
r

Scale:1 Garage Apron Detail
3/4" = 1'-0"

2'-0"

Bituminous paving; Positive
slope from building for 4'-0"

3500 PSI
4" Concrete slab
W/ 1.4x1.4 WWF

2-#4 Rebar top
and bottom

#4 @ 48" O.C.

ng

2'-0"

8"

(3)#4 EW

3500 PSI Concrete slab

Simpson ABU 88 post anchor
or equivalent

Fiberglass mesh reinforcing

2'-0"

8"

(2) #4 EW

3500 PSI Concrete slab

Simpson ABU 88 post anchor
or equivalent

Fiberglass mesh reinforcing

Angle concrete for
haunch

Scale:3 Interior Pier / Footing
3/4" = 1'-0"

#5 @ 12" O.C.

10"

2'-0"

10
"

Grade

3- #4 contiuous

#4 @ 24" O.C.

10"

Finish Floor
Elev:

4'
-0

" 
M

in
im

um

3"
Co

ve
r

1/2" Preformed joint filler
3500 PSI Concrete slab

Va
rie

s

1/2" dia AB @ 48" O.C.
and all terminations
Provide minimum 7" embedment

2-#4 bars continuous at top

1'-
0"

Fiberglass mesh reinforcing

4"

Scale:2 UpHill Retaining Wall
3/4" = 1'-0"

Provide foundation
dampproofing

#5 bars @ 12" O.C. Vertical

#4 bars @ 12" O.C. Horizontal

7'
-10

"

2'-0"

4'
-6

"

Metal connector to be
provided for posts

1'-6"

4'
-6

"

8"

Scale:4 Pier Footing details
3/4" = 1'-0"

#4 @ 48" O.C.

10"

2'-0"

3-#4 bars.

#4 @ 24" O.C.

3"
Co

ve
r

1/2" Preformed joint filler
3500 PSI Concrete slab

2-#4 bars at top

Fiberglass mesh reinforcing

Fo
un

da
tio

n 
w

al
l f

ro
m

 to
p 

of
 fo

ot
in

g

Scale:5 Typical Interior Foundation Wall
3/4" = 1'-0"

7'
-10

"

#4 @ 48" O.C.
Horizontally

10"

2'-0"

8"

Grade

#4@ 24" O.C.

#4 @ 24" O.C.

10"

Finish Floor
Elev:

5'
-8

"

3"
Co

ve
r

1/2" Preformed joint filler
3500 PSI Concrete slab

2'
-2

"

1/2" dia AB @ 48" O.C.
and all terminations
Provide minimum 7" embedment

2-#4 bars at top

1'-
0"

Fiberglass mesh reinforcing

4"

Scale:6 Typical Foundation Wall
3/4" = 1'-0"

Provide foundation
dampproofing

#4 @ 24" O.C.
Vertically

Revisions:Date:

 DATE 

 SHEET NUMBER 

 SCALE 

 TITLE 

Prepared For

 PROJECT 

Proposed
Townhouse
0 Ellis Court
Keene, NH 03431

Pomah, LLC
PO Box 861
Keene, NH 03431

Owner Review5.20.24
Permitting5.21.24

..

.

.

.

.

.

Engineer:

..

2024 WO# 24-022
S A M P S O N    A R C H I T E C T S  C

These drawings are LIMITED SCOPE
and are intended only to describe
general design intent, scale, overall
spatial relationships and material
where indicated.
These drawings shall be considered
preliminary for purposes of design
review, comment, or budget pricing
only, unless expressly released for
other purposes as indicated in the
issue log.
The architect assumes responsibility
for errors in the information
provided, and not for omissions.

Architect:

Sampson Architects
Timothy Sampson
NCARB, LEED AP
11 King Court
Suite 1E
Keene, NH
603 769 7736

Foundation Plan
Details

5.21.24

A4

Notes

as noted

Foundation Plan
1/4" = 1'-0"Scale:

STRUCTURAL NOTES

GENERAL
1. Structural drawings shall be used in conjunction with architectural, mechanical,

plumbing, electrical drawings plus shop drawings and specifications.
2. All existing dimensions and conditions must be verified or determined in the field and any

discrepancies shall be brought to the attention of the architect/engineer before
proceeding with the affected portion of the work.

3. Details shown on any drawings are to be considered typical for all similar conditions,
unless otherwise noted.

4. Refer to architectural drawings for dimensions and details not shown.

FOUNDATIONS & SLABS
1. The bottom surface of all spread footings shall rest on undisturbed material or compacted

structural fill with a minimum allowable bearing pressure of 3000 pounds per square
foot.

2. The elevation top of each footing is indicated as [0'-0"] on plan.   Top of each exterior
footing shall be a minimum of 4'-0" below finish grade.

3. No footing shall be placed under water or on frozen ground.
4. Provide 8" minimum crushed gravel, compacted, with a reinforced vapor barrier under

interior slabs on grade.
5. Backfill at foundation frost walls shall progress evenly on both sides of the wall to avoid

unbalanced soil pressure loading.
6. Concrete retaining walls shall achieve 28 day strength prior to backfilling.
7. All placed gravel under slabs and foundations shall be compacted to at least 95% of

maximum dry density as measured by a modified proctor test.

CONCRETE
1. All concrete construction shall conform to ACI standard 318 "building code requirements

for reinforced concrete" latest edition.
2. All concrete used for slabs shall have a compressive strength at 28 days of at least 3000

psi. foundation concrete aggregate shall be ¾”; slab aggregate shall be 1½”.
3. All concrete used for footings and walls shall have a compressive strength at 28 days of

at least 3000 psi. foundation concrete aggregate shall be ¾”; slab aggregate shall be
1½”.

4. All reinforcing bars shall conform to ASTM A 615 grade 60, and shall be deformed. Lap all
continuous bars a minimum of 40 diameters. provide matching corner and intersection
wall bars.

5. All welded wire fabric shall conform to ASTM A 185 in flat sheets. Lap one and one-half
squares at all joints and tie at 3'-0"o.c.

6. Clear concrete protection for reinforcing:
A. Footings: 3" above bearing soil
B. Foundation walls: 1½"
C. Pilasters: 1½ " to ties
D. Piers: 1½ " to ties
E. Slabs on grade: 1" from top
F. Slabs on metal deck: 1" from top

7. No bars shall be cut or omitted in the field because of sleeves, duct openings or recesses
without the approval of the engineer.

8. No chases, recesses, openings or sleeves shall be installed in concrete without approval
of the engineer.

9. No conduit shall be installed in slabs on metal deck.
10. All keys shall be a minimum of 2" x 4" with beveled sides.
11. All anchor bolts shall be set by template.
10. All construction joints shall be formed with a standard key and all reinforcing extended a

minimum of 40 diameters.
11.All floor slabs shall be poured to the required elevation. all slab thicknesses indicated are

minimum.

71 of 85



 

 

 
STORM WATER MANAGEMENT REPORT 

DUPLEX RESIDENTIAL BUILDING 
COLONY COURT, KEENE, NEW HAMPSHIRE 

Prepared for: 
Sampson Architects 

July 8, 2024 

I) INTRODUCTION 

This storm-water management report was conducted for a proposed site development for a duplex 
residential housing project in Keene, NH. The property is located on Colony Court, specifically on 
City of Keene Assessor’s Parcel 535-12-000-000-000.  The site is currently undeveloped and 
surrounded by residential homes. The applicant is proposing to construct a duplex residential home 
with drive-under garages and outdoor parking spaces.   
 
The purpose of this report is to analyze the qualitative and quantitative impacts of the proposed 
development on stormwater runoff. The objective of the proposed stormwater management 
system for this project is to mitigate any increases resulting from the proposed development and to 
meet the drainage guidelines set forth in the City of Keene’s Site Plan Review regulations, as the 
project requires a Conditional Use Permit from the Planning Board.  
 

II) SITE DESCRIPTION (EXISTING) 

The subject property is listed as 0.183 Acre (8,001 S.F.), with frontage along Colony Court. The lot is 
undeveloped and consists of brush landcover sloping upwards from Colony Court to the rear of the 
lot. The lot shows signs of past land disturbance, as there are no mature trees within the area of 
development. 
The NRCS websoil survey indicates that the soils on site are Windsor Sandy Loam (26B).  This soil is 
listed as a Hydrologic Group (HSG) “A” soil, with a listed infiltration rate of 6.0 Inches/hour to 20.0 
inches/hour. 
 

III) METHODOLOGY 

The quantity of runoff and the conveyance of that flow through the site are determined using the 
software package HydroCAD r 10.0 by HydroCAD Software Solutions, LLC.  HydroCAD is a computer 
aided design program for modeling storm water hydrology based on the Soil Conservation Service 
(SCS) TR-20 method combined with standard hydraulics calculations used to model stormwater 
systems, such as detention basins, culverts, swales, and catch basins. 
 

72 of 85



 
 
Sampson Architects #3887.00 
Colony Court Duplex – Storm Water Mgt. Report  Page 2  
 

The stormwater management systems are designed in accordance with the methodology for the 
"Best Management Practices" (BMP’s), as outlined in the New Hampshire Storm Water Manual, 
Volume 2. 

 
IV) DRAINAGE DESIGN 

In accordance with the City of Keene Land Development Code (Section 21.2), there will be no 
increase in the volume or velocity of stormwater onto adjacent properties. In order to demonstrate 
this the two (2), ten (10), and fifty (50) year frequency storm events have been evaluated.  The 
values for each storm modeled match the Extreme Precipitation Estimates, as listed by the 
Northeast Regional Climate Center, specifically for Keene NH. These design storms have been 
analyzed to compare the Pre and Post-development peak flow rates for the site (see attached 
comparison tables below). 
 
Pre-Development Drainage Conditions: 
The Pre-Development Drainage Area Plan outlines the area where water flows across the property.  
The high point of the property is along the eastern boundary and flows to the west, towards Colony 
Court. The water currently flows along the edge of pavement on Colony Court to a catch basin near 
the southwest corner of the subject lot. This catch basin was used as the Observation Point (OP1) 
to compare the Pre and Post Development runoff rates.  

Post-Development Drainage Conditions: 
The proposed drainage systems were designed to capture runoff from the building and paved 
areas, and direct the flow to stormwater management systems.  The existing condition has all 
water flowing to the municipal catch basin in Colony Court. Therefore, the post-development 
condition will require mitigating the runoff velocities and volumes to this catch basin (OP1).  There 
are 3 Subcatchments modeled in the post-development condition, to model the runoff to OP1. 
Subcatchment 1S includes the area of the property that is not altered and water flows directly to 
the catch basin OP1.  Subcatchment 2S includes the area that flows to the underdrain behind the 
retaining walls (Pond 1P). Subcatchment 3S includes the area that flows directly into the stone 
infiltration trench (Pond 2P).  Pond 3P is a vertical standpipe that will have a round, yard drain 
cover and allow for a raised outlet. The raised outlet will allow water to build up higher in the stone 
infiltration trench to promote infiltration to the underlying soil and detain water.  

The net result is that virtually all of the new impervious areas will receive qualitative treatment and 
there will be a reduction of peak rates of runoff leaving this site for all storm events. 

V) SUMMARY 

The intent of the stormwater management system for this project is to address the qualitative and 
quantitative aspects of the stormwater runoff so that there are no downstream adverse impacts 
created by the project. To mitigate the resulting increases in runoff peak rates due to the 
development of Lot 535-12, this project proposes that a stormwater management system 

73 of 85



 
 
Sampson Architects #3887.00 
Colony Court Duplex – Storm Water Mgt. Report  Page 3  
 

consisting of two (2) retaining wall underdrains with stone, two (2) infiltration trenches (one on 
either side of the driveway, and one (1) vertical standpipe/yard drain to be constructed. The net 
result is that the new building and paved areas will receive qualitative treatment and there will be 
no increase in the peak rates of runoff leaving the site. 

The stormwater management design for this project therefore complies with the standards set 
forth in the City of Keene’s Land Development Regulations.   

The following table is a summary of the attached calculations and shows a comparison of the peak 
flow rates at the summary point for the site.  The values presented are based on Pre- and Post-
development conditions. 

 

Table 1.1: Peak Flow Rates (CFS)/Volume (AF) to Observation Point 1 (OP1) – PRE VS. POST DEVELOPMENT 

STORM FREQUENCY PRE-DEV. RUNOFF 
(CFS/AF) 

POST-DEV. RUNOFF 
(CFS/AF) 

CHANGE 
(CFS/AF) 

2-YEAR 0.0/0.0 0.0/0.0 -/- 

10-YEAR 0.0/0.0 0.0/0.001 -/0.001 

50-YEAR 0.0/0.03 0.06/0.004 +0.06/-0.026 

 

 

 

74 of 85



 

 

3 Washington Street 
Keene, NH 03431 

 

(603) 352-5440 

KeeneNH.gov  

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:   Planning Board    
 
FROM:   Mari Brunner, Senior Planner 
 
DATE:   July 17, 2024 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item VI – Request for Review and Comment  
 

Recommendation:  

If the Board is inclined to recommend approval to City Council, the following language is 
suggested for a motion: 

“Move to recommend that City Council grant the request to authorize the issuance of 
building permits for three duplexes on the property located at 57 Marlboro Street.” 

Background: 

This request pertains to two existing, developed lots within the city that only have frontage and 
access from a private road: 3 Aliber Place and 57 Marlboro Street. These are both legally non-
conforming lots of record that pre-date current zoning regulations. RSA 674:41, subsection I(d) 
states that building permits may be issued when the street giving access to the lot upon which 
the building is proposed to be placed is a private road, provided that: 

“(1)  The local governing body, after review and comment by the planning board, has voted to 
authorize the issuance of building permits for the erection of buildings on said private 
road or portion thereof; and 

(2)  The municipality neither assumes responsibility for maintenance of said private roads nor 
liability for any damages resulting from the use thereof; and 

(3)  Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall produce evidence that notice 
of the limits of municipal responsibility and liability has been recorded in the county 
registry of deeds for the lot for which the building permit is sought." 

The applicant, Mr. Jared Goodell, proposes to merge 3 Aliber Place and 57 Marlboro Street and 
build three duplexes that would be accessed from Aliber Place, an 18-ft private right of way. In 
accordance with RSA 674:41, the applicant has submitted a request for City Council 
authorization for the issuance of building permits on a lot that has access from a private road.  

The applicant’s request, including a narrative, site plan, photos, and building elevations, is 
included as an attachment to this memo.  

77 of 85



 

 
1 PO Box 283 • Keene, NH 03431 • P: 603-903-3677 

7/16/2024 

City of Keene, Community Development Department 
3 Washington St., Keene, NH 03431 
Attn: Mayor Jay Kahn, Chairman Harold Farrington 
CC: Mari Brunner, Senior Planner 
 
Re: 57 Marlboro Street development – Request for approval 
 
Mayor Kahn/Planning Board Chair Farrington, 
 
Tailfeather Strategies, on behalf of property owner Mr. Jared Goodell, submit the following 
information to aid in the decision to grant permission for a proposed development on the lot 
located at 57 Marlboro Street (TMP#: 590-093-000-000-000), which is in the Downtown-Edge zoning 
district. The site currently has a three-family residential structure and no commercial uses. The 
reason for this unusual request is that the property has no street frontage and is sandwiched 
between a single-family home to the rear and a two-family building along Marlboro Street. All 
residences on these three parcels are accessed by Aliber Place, a private road that connects to 
Marlboro Street.  
 
Under RSA 674:41, a building permit for new development on a private road such as Aliber Place 
must be granted by the local governing body, in this case Keene’s City Council, after consulting with 
the Planning Board. The law also requires that the owner, in this case Mr. Jared Goodell, record a 
notice in the Registry of Deeds acknowledging that the city is not liable for maintenance or damage 
that might occur on that road (RSA 674:41, I(d))ϟϙaŘϟϙ@ĺĺîôīīϙĖĲťôĲîŜϙťĺϙƱīôϙŜŪèēϙÍϙĲĺťĖèôϙæôċĺŘôϙ
applying for building permits.  
 
RSA 674:41 does not set forth the criteria the municipality should use in considering a request for 
authorization, but one factor municipalities tend to consider is the ability of emergency vehicles to 
access the land in question. We have had one pre-ŜŪæıĖŜŜĖĺĲϙıôôťĖĲČϙſĖťēϙŜťÍƯϙĺĲϙťēĖŜϙŕŘĺŕĺŜÍīϟϙ
�ĺīĖèôϠϙ>ĖŘôϠϙ�ŪæīĖèϙ®ĺŘħŜϠϙ�ĺîôϙ(ĲċĺŘèôıôĲťϠϙÍĲîϙ�īÍĲĲĖĲČϙŜťÍƯϙſôŘôϙpresent to review and 
comment on the proposed plan æôċĺŘôϙŜŪæıĖŜŜĖĺĲϙĺċϙĺŪŘϙƱĲÍīϙapplication documents. No 
comments or concerns were brought forward as it relates to access to the site by emergency 
personnel or vehicles. The proposed driveway and parking area does comply with the standards 
ŕŘôŜèŘĖæôîϙĖĲϙXôôĲôЍŜϙ[ÍĲîϙ"ôŽôīĺŕıôĲťϙ�ĺîôϠϙŜŕôèĖƱèÍīīƅϙ�ŘťĖèīôϙ͘ϟ͒ϙЊ"ŘĖŽôſÍƅϙ"ôŜĖČĲϙ
�ťÍĲîÍŘîŜϠϙÍĲîϙ�ŘťĖèīôϙ͘ϟ͓ϙЊ�ÍŘħĖĲČϙ[ĺťϙ"ôŜĖČĲϙ�ťÍĲîÍŘîŜЋϟ 
 
The proposed development is currently going through the planning and zoning review process. The 
approval being considered under RSA 674:41 is not a substitute for any of the City’s planning, 
zoning, or building code approval processes. This request is in addition to the standard review and 
approvals used to scrutinize every proposed development project in the city. 
 

78 of 85



2 PO Box 283 • Keene, NH 03431 • P: 603-903-3677 

Thank you for considering our request and helping us create (6) new workforce housing units in 
Keene. Our planned construction start date is September 1, 2024. Anything that can be done to 
expedite this approval would be greatly appreciated.  

To aid in your decision, I have included the following background materials with this letter: 
x A development summary 
x Illustrations of the proposed development from the public right-of-way along Marlboro 

Street 
x Proposed site plan and architectural drawings 

We have carefully designed this project to minimize the impact of this development on the 
surrounding neighborhood and the city’s infrastructure. We hope you will agree and approve this 
request swiftly, allowing us to proceed. I’m happy to make myself available to answer any questions 
or concerns. 

Thanks and best regards, 

_____________________ 
George Hansel, Tailfeather Strategies 

Submitted with permission on behalf of: 

_____________________ 
Jared Goodell, Property Owner 

79 of 85



 

 
3 PO Box 283 • Keene, NH 03431 • P: 603-903-3677 

 
 
Development Summary: 

 
Property Location: 57 Marlboro Street (TMP#: 590-093-000-000-000) 
Property Owner: Jared Goodell, PO Box 305, Keene NH 03431 
 
The subject property currently has a three-family structure and no street frontage. It is accessed by 
a private road (Aliber Place) that connects to Marlboro Street and acts as a shared driveway for 
three residential properties: 57 Marlboro Street, 59 Marlboro Street, and 3 Aliber Place. All three 
parcels are served by city water and sewer. The subject parcel is sandwiched between a lot with a 
single-family residence to the rear and a lot with a two-family residential property with frontage on 
Marlboro Street. All three properties are owned by Mr. Jared Goodell. He plans to voluntarily merge 
57 Marlboro Street and 3 Aliber Place as part of this proposed development.  
 
The proposal will add (3) two-family structures to a vacant section of 57 Marlboro Street. In total, (6) 
new housing units will be created. These units will be marketed as workforce housing. While 
unusual, development without frontage is permissible under RSA 674.41 with approval by the City 
Council, with advice from the Planning Board. 
 

 

80 of 85



 

 
4 PO Box 283 • Keene, NH 03431 • P: 603-903-3677 

 

Illustration of public view of the new development from the sidewalk in front of 53 Marlboro Street.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

81 of 85



 

 
5 PO Box 283 • Keene, NH 03431 • P: 603-903-3677 

 

Illustration of view of the new development from the interior parking lot of 246 Main Street (the rear 
entrance of the Historical Society of Cheshire County).  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

82 of 85



 

 
6 PO Box 283 • Keene, NH 03431 • P: 603-903-3677 

 

 
Illustration of public view of the new development from the sidewalk in front of 59 Marlboro Street. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

83 of 85



84 of 85



Bedroom

Living Room

Bathroom

Kitchen

8'-11 3/4"

8'
-7

 1/
2"

10
'-0

"

9'-3 1/8"

15'-0 3/4"

5'-8 1/2"

Bedroom

Living Room

Bathroom

Kitchen

8'-11 3/4"

8'
-7

 1/
2"

10
'-0

"

9'-3 1/8"

15'-0 3/4"

5'-8 1/2"

20
'-0

"

32'-0"

4'-7" 5'-2 1/8" 3'-0" 6'-5 3/4" 4'-7"5'-2 1/8"3'-0"

6'-11 3/4" 18'-0 1/2" 6'-11 3/4"

4'
-9

 3
/4

"
9'

-8
 1/

4"
5'

-6
"

UPUP

EGRESSEGRESS

36"x54" 36"x54"

Top of Slab

8'
-2

 1/
8"

Top Plate

Peak

9'
-9

 11
/16

"

Centerline of fire separation

Concrete foundationGrade varies

1'-0"
O.h.

Vinyl siding

Vinyl trim

Vinyl fascia

Vinyl clad
window; Typ.

Asphalt shingles

Ridge vent

36"x54" 36"x54"

Top of Slab

8'
-2

 1/
8"

Top Plate

Peak

9'
-9

 11
/16

"

1'-0"
O.h.

Centerline of fire separation

EGRESS EGRESS

Concrete foundationGrade varies

Vinyl siding

Vinyl trim

Vinyl fascia

Vinyl clad
window; Typ.

Ridge vent

Asphalt shingles

36"x54" 36"x54"

12
10 10

Top of Slab

8'
-2

 1/
8"

Top Plate

Peak

9'
-9

 11
/16

"

Concrete foundation

1'-0"
O.h.

Vinyl siding

Vinyl trim

Vinyl fascia

Vinyl clad
window; Typ.

Ridge vent

Grade varies

36"x54" 36"x54"

12
10 10

Top of Slab

8'
-2

 1/
8"

Top Plate

Peak

9'
-9

 11
/16

"

Concrete foundation

1'-0"
O.h.

Vinyl siding

Vinyl trim

Vinyl fascia

Vinyl clad
window; Typ.

Ridge vent

Grade varies

9'
-0

"

MARLBORO STREET

PR
OPO

SE
D 

DR
IV

E

PROPOSED
PARKING

Lot: 590-093-000-000-000
Lot Area: 13068 SQ.FT. +/-
Lot Area: 0.30 Acres +/-

CH
AI

N LI
NKE

D 
FE

NCE

76.3'

38
.8

4'

67
.3

7'

111.2'

33.95'

64.77'

39
.2

9'

59
.9

5'

Existing
Building

59 Marlboro St
Existing
2-Family

3 Aliber Pl
Existing

Single Family

57 Marlboro St
Existing
3-Family

18'-0"

9'-0"

Dumpster with
enclosure

Green space

PROPOSED
PARKING

22'-0"

18'-0"

9'-0"

9'-0"

18'-0"

9'-0"

18'-0"
18'-0"

6'-0"

Proposed  Building
640 SF +/-

18'-0"

Proposed  Building
640 SF +/-

Proposed  Building
640 SF +/-

5'-0"

4'-11 5/8"

5'-1"5'-5"

5'-4"

5'-0"

Zoning Data:
Parcel ID: 590-093-000-000-000
Owner: Goodell, Jared
Zoning: Downtown Edge
Lot Area: 13,068 sf

Max. Building Height: 3 Stories / 40 feet
Min. Lot Area: 10,000 SF
Min. Lot area per Dwelling unit:
Min lot width at building line: 50 feet
Min. Front Setback: 0-20 feet
Min. Rear Setback: 0 feet
Min. Side Setback: 0 feet
Max. Percentage of Lot
Occupied by Structures: 0%
Max. Percentage Impermeable
Materials: 60%
Min. Percentage of green space 40%

1 Stories / 19 feet
1920 SF

183 feet
3.5 feet
1 ft

15%

34%
66%

Required Proposed Structure

Left Side Elevation
1/4" = 1'-0"Scale:

Front Elevation
1/4" = 1'-0"Scale:

First Floor Plan
1/4" = 1'-0"Scale:

GENERAL NOTES:
1.  Contractor shall review existing conditions by field visit prior to submitting bid.
2.  Dimensions shown are approximate only. All dimensions shall be field verified and
coordinated with existing conditions.
3. Contact architect / engineer for decisions related to variation from information shown.
4. Contractor shall certify that all work is in accordance with the 2021 version of the
International Residential Code. All other local or national codes and requirements and
good construction practices.
5. Insulation to be provided to achieve the following values

Walls: R-20
Floors: R-30
Sloped Ceilings: R-30
Flat Ceiling: R-38
Windows: U-35

6. Contractor to verify R.O. of doors and windows prior to purchase.
7. All electrical installation in the common wall shall be protected and comply with IRC
section R302.4 and Chapters 34-43.

Rear Elevation
1/4" = 1'-0"Scale:

Right Elevation
1/4" = 1'-0"Scale:

Site/Floor Plan
Elevations

7.16.24

A1

Details/Notes

as noted

Revisions:Date:

 DATE 

 SHEET NUMBER 

 SCALE 

 TITLE 

Prepared For

 PROJECT 

Architect:

Proposed
Development
57 Marlboro Street
Keene, NH 03431

Jared Goodell
PO Box 305
Keene, NH 03431

Zoning Submission7.16.24
--
--

Sampson Architects
Timothy Sampson
NCARB, LEED AP
11 King Court
Suite 1E
Keene, NH
603 769 7736

.

.

.

.

.

Engineer:

These drawings are LIMITED SCOPE
and are intended only to describe
general design intent, scale, overall
spatial relationships and material
where indicated.
These drawings shall be considered
preliminary for purposes of design
review, comment, or budget pricing
only, unless expressly released for
other purposes as indicated in the
issue log.
The architect assumes responsibility
for errors in the information
provided, and not for omissions.

Timothy P. Sampson

2024                          WO# 24-026
S A M P S O N    A R C H I T E C T SC

Site Plan
1/32" = 1'-0"Scale:

85 of 85



 

THE PLANNING BOARD IN NH III-1  2023 – NH OPD 

CHAPTER III: REGULATORY FUNCTIONS 
 
Drafting, reviewing and recommending ordinances, regulations and amendments. 

Subdivision and Site Plan Review Regulations. 
 
 PURPOSE OF SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS (RSA 674:35) 
 
Subdivision control guides municipal development, protects prospective residents and abutting 
property owners from problems associated with poorly designed areas, and advances the purposes of 
the municipality’s police power: to protect the public health, safety, and general welfare.  Subdivision 
controls are based on the premise that a new subdivision is not an island but an integral part of the 
whole community which must mesh efficiently with the municipal pattern of streets, sewers, water 
lines and other installations that provide essential services and vehicular access.  Peter Loughlin, 
Volume 15, New Hampshire Practice Series, §29.02. 
 
Regardless of whether or not a 
municipality has adopted a zoning 
ordinance, the legislative body may 
authorize the planning board to 
regulate the subdivision of land (RSA 
674:35).  The planning board must 
adopt regulations before exercising this 
power.  See RSA 674:36 for a list of 
provisions that may be included in 
subdivision regulations. 
 
 PURPOSE OF SITE PLAN REVIEW REGULATIONS (RSA 674:43) 
 
In addition to subdivision review authority, municipalities may regulate site plans for non-residential, 
as well as multi-family, housing development.  Site plan review is one of the most useful techniques 
in modern land use control.  It is an important device to ensure that uses that are permitted by the 
zoning ordinance are constructed in such a way that they fit into the area in which they are being 
constructed without causing drainage, traffic, lighting, or similar problems. 
 
A site plan may be required to be submitted to the planning board prior to development of a particular 
tract of land.  The plan must show the proposed location of the buildings, parking areas, landscaping, 
drainage, and other installations on the plot and their relationship to existing conditions such as roads, 
neighboring land uses, natural features, public facilities, ingress and egress roads, interior roads and 
similar features. 
 
The authority to review site plans for non-residential and multi-family housing development, whether 
or not it involves the subdivision of land, may be delegated to the planning board by vote of the 
municipality’s legislative body, but only in municipalities that have adopted a zoning ordinance and 
subdivision regulations (RSA 674:43).  Site plan review regulations, which are adopted by the planning 
board, may govern adequate drainage, protection of groundwater quality, provision of “open spaces 
and green spaces of adequate proportions,” fire safety, and other similar issues. 
(RSA 674:44). 
 
 
 

“Subdivision” means the division of the lot, tract, or 
parcel of land into two or more lots, plats, sites, or 
other divisions of land for the purpose, whether 
immediate or future, of sale, rent, lease, 
condominium conveyance, or building 
development. 
It includes re-subdivision and, when appropriate to 
the context, relates to the process of subdividing or 
to the land or territory subdivided.  (RSA 672:14, I) 

75 of 85

mbrunner
Highlight



 

THE PLANNING BOARD IN NH III-4  2023 – NH OPD 

through the National Fire Protection Association regulations to require residential sprinklers when 
unique site or building conditions warrant them). 

 
Preparing Site Plan Review Regulations (RSA 674:44) 

Local site plan review regulations which must be adopted by the planning board shall include: 

a. The procedures the board must follow in reviewing site plans; 

b. A provision defining the purpose of site plan review (at a minimum, the general language 
provided in the statute should be incorporated); 

c. A specification of the general standards and requirements that must be met “including 
appropriate reference to accepted codes and standards for construction;” 

d. Provisions for guarantees of performance, including bonds or other security; and 

e. Waiver provisions (see Chapter IV for more information on waivers). 
 

Additionally, site plan review regulations may include: 

a. Provide for the safe and attractive development or modified use of the site and protect 
against conditions that could pose a danger or injury to health, safety or prosperity due to: 
− inadequate drainage that may contribute to flooding, 
− inadequate protection of groundwater quality, 
− increased undesirable, yet preventable, noise, air, light, or other pollution, and  
− inadequate fire safety, prevention or control. 

b. Provide for the harmonious and aesthetically pleasing development of the municipality and 
its environs; 

c. Provide for adequate proportions of open spaces and green spaces; 

d. Require the proper arrangement and coordination of streets within the site in relation to 
other existing or planned streets or with features of the official map of the municipality; 

e. Require that streets be suitably located and sized, usually to road standards adopted by the 
municipality, to accommodate existing and future traffic and access to emergency vehicles 
and services; 

f. Require that plats depicting new streets or the resizing of existing streets be submitted to the 
planning board for approval; 

g. Require that land be suitable for building purposes without posing health risks; 

h. Include conditions that protect the health, safety, convenience or prosperity of the 
municipality; 

i. Require innovative land use controls when supported by the master plan; and 

j. Require preliminary review of site plans. 

k. The Board can consider making the application and checklist as part of the site plan 
regulations; 

 
Subdivision and site plan review regulations should evolve from the overall planning process that 
starts with preparation of the master plan.  Subdivision and site plan regulations control the design 
and accessibility of the subdivision and/or development itself, not the use itself or where it can be 
located in the community.  Zoning regulations establish permitted uses and density limits for the 
various areas in a community based on the development patterns and types of uses i.e. residential 

76 of 85

mbrunner
Highlight


	2024_07_22_pb_agenda_AMENDED
	Minutes
	Final Approval Memo
	973 Marlboro Rd_Withdrawl Request Letter_Received 07-10-24
	435 Chapman Mini Packet
	PB-2024-06_Staff Report
	Application_Received 06-14-24
	Narrative_REVISED_Received 07-03-24
	Plan Set_REDUCED
	Test Pit Data_Received 06-14-24

	PB2024-07_Staff Report
	Dinkbees no sr
	Application_Received 06-14-24.pdf
	Narrative & Waiver Request_Received 06-14-24.pdf
	Waiver Requests_Received 07-08-24.pdf
	Response to Staff Comments_Received 07-08-24.pdf
	Plan Set_REVISED_Received 07-08-24_REDUCED.pdf
	Elevations_Received 07-08-24_REDUCED.pdf

	0 Ellis Ct mini packet_AMENDED
	0 Ellis Court_Staff Report
	S-13-06_Final Signed Subdivision Plan_REDUCED
	Application_Received 06-14-24
	Narrative_Received 06-14-24
	Architecturals_REDUCED

	NH OPD PB Handbook Excerpt - site plan
	RSA 674-41 Memo
	RSA674_41 Request-signed



